
 

 
 16401 Paramount Boulevard  

Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 
 

 
Los Angeles Gateway Region 

Integrated Regional Water Management Joint 
Powers Authority 

 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Thursday, August 11, 2016 at 11:30 a.m. 

Progress Park Plaza, 15500 Downey Avenue, Paramount, CA 
 

 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Determination of a Quorum 

 
3. Additions to Agenda (Govt. Code Sec. 54954.2(b)) 

 
4. Oral Communications to the Board 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any item under the jurisdiction of the agency.  Depending upon the subject matter, t
he Board may be unable to respond until the item can be posted on the agenda at a future meeting in accordance with provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

5. Consent Calendar: (Acted as one item unless withdrawn by request) 
a. Minutes of the Board Meeting of July 14, 2016 (Enclosure) 
b. Warrant Register Report for August 2016 (Enclosure) 

 
6. Discussion/Action Regarding GWMA Audit Activities 

a. Receive and File Annual Audit for FY2014/15 as presented (Enclosure) 
  

7. Discussion/Action Regarding Prop 84 IRWM 2015 Grant (Enclosures) 
a. Approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the LACFCD and GWMA 

and Authorize the Executive Officer to make Non-Material Changes to the MOU in 
Consultation with Legal Counsel, if needed. 

b. Authorize the Chair to Sign and Execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
LACFCD and GWMA. 

c. Approve Individual Subrecipient Agreements with Participants of the Advance Meter 
Replacement Project, the Southeast Water Efficiency Project, the Gateway Cities Regional 
Recycled Water System Expansion Project, and the Paramount Blvd. Turf Replacement 
Project as presented. 

d. Authorize the Executive Officer to Sign and Execute Individual Subrecipient Agreements 
with Participants of the Advance Meter Replacement Project, the Southeast Water 
Efficiency Project, the Gateway Cities Regional Recycled Water System Expansion Project, 
and the Paramount Blvd. Turf Replacement Project 

 

 
Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park 
· La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · 

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 



 

 
 16401 Paramount Boulevard  

Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  
 
 

www.gatewaywater.org 
 

 
Los Angeles Gateway Region 

Integrated Regional Water Management Joint 
Powers Authority 

 

 
8. Discussion/Action Regarding Support of AB 2794 (Lara) and SB 953 (Garcia) Compromise 

Bills as Described (Enclosure) 
 

9. Discussion/Action Regarding GWMA-hosted Stormwater Workshop 
 

10. Gateway Region Watershed Management Groups 
a. Discussion/Action Regarding Private Entities’ Financial Participation  

 
b. Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 

 
c. Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
 
d. Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 
 
e. Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 
 

1. GWMA as Fiduciary Agency for the Catch Basin Retrofit 
 

11. Executive Officer’s Report 
 

12. Directors’ Comments/Reports 
 

13. Adjournment 

 

 
Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park 
· La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · 

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A 

MINUTES OF THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD  
AT PARAMOUNT, CALIFORNIA 

THURSDAY, JULY 14, 2016 
 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Gateway Water Management 
Authority was held on Thursday, July 14, 2016 at 11:30 a.m. at the Progress Park Plaza, 15500 
Downey Avenue, Paramount, CA 90723. 

 
Chair Chris Cash called the meeting to order at 11:44 a.m. Roll was called by Ms. Penn 

and a quorum of the Board was declared. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

 

 

STAFF AND GUESTS ON SIGN-IN SHEET:  
Grace Kast 
Toni Penn 
Bibi Weiss 
Dave Pelser 
Charlie Honeycutt 
Catherine Jun 
Virginia Fowler 
Julia Juarez 
Jason Wen 
Bill Minasian 
Iso Nakasato 

Executive Officer 
Admin/Accounting Manager 
Office Assistant 
HR Green Consulting 
Signal Hill 
Bellflower 
LACFCD 
Senator Lara’s Office 
Lakewood 
Downey 
Assemblywoman Garcia’s Office 

 
  

Okina Dor 
Jordan Monroe 
Chau Vu (alternate) 

Len Gorecki 
Joseph Legaspi (alternate) 

Mike O’Grady  (alternate) 

Gina Nila 
Aaron Hernandez-Torres 
Mohammad Mostahkami 
Marlin Munoz (alternate) 

Lisa Rapp 
Anthony Arevalo 
Christopher Garner 
Sam Kouri (alternate) 

Chris Cash 
Noe Negrete 
Steve Myrter 
William DeWitt 

Artesia 
Avalon 
Bell Gardens 
Bellflower 
Central Basin MWD 
Cerritos 
Commerce 
Cudahy 
Downey 
La Mirada 
Lakewood 
Long Beach 
Long Beach Water Department 
Montebello 
Paramount 
Santa Fe Springs 
Signal Hill 
South Gate 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes July 14, 2016 

 
 
ITEM 3 - ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 None. 
  
ITEM 4 – ORAL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 
 
 None. 
 
ITEM 5 – CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Director Mostahkami motioned to approve the consent calendar. Director Garner 
seconded the motion which was approved by the following voice vote: 
 

AYES: MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-
TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, 
KOURI, CASH, NEGRETE 

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: DOR, NILA 
 
ITEM 6 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING SB953 (LARA) 
 
 Ms. Kast welcomed Julia Juarez, District Officer from Senator Lara’s office.  
 
 Ms. Juarez updated the Board on the current status of SB953.  She stated that the Bill was 
currently with the Assembly Appropriations Committee.  She stated that this Bill required that 
the board of directors of the Central Basin MWD consist of 7 members, five of which must be 
elected and 2 of which must be appointed by the board of supervisors of the County of Los 
Angeles that had a minimum of five years’ experience and be employed by the appointing 
agency/city.   
 
 Director William DeWitt entered the meeting at 12:06 pm. 
 
ITEM 7 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA’S POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES:  GWMA’S CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS  

 
Ms. Kast reported that an Ad Hoc Committee was assigned to help develop a policy for 

the GWMA.  She indicated that, during discussion with GWMA Staff, the Ad Hoc Committee 
and GWMA’s legal counsel, it was decided to loosely base the Procurement Procedures on the 
Uniform jurisdiction of the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission.  She 
also stated that among the differences between the Procedure and the Act were the facts that the 
Procedures had lower bidding categories, and unlike the Act, applied to maintenance agreements.   

 
Page 2 

 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes July 14, 2016 

 
 

Steve Dorsey, Legal Counsel, reviewed a handout and a detailed discussion took place. 
  

Director Nila motioned to approve GWMA’s Procurement Procedures for Construction 
and Maintenance Projects as amended in a form satisfactory to Legal Counsel. Director DeWitt 
seconded the motion and was approved by the following voice vote: 
 

AYES:  MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-
TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, 
KOURI, CASH, NEGRETE   

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING HOSTING A STORMWATER NPDES 
WORKSHOP 
 

Ms. Kast introduced Iso Nakasato from Assemblywoman Garcia’s office.  Ms. Kast 
reported that GWMA was approached by Ms. Nakasato to host the Stormwater NPDES 
Workshop.  Ms. Kast asked for volunteers to help with the Workshop to be held possibly in 
September/October.   

 
Director’s Gina Nila, Lisa Rapp and Mr. Charlie Honeycutt volunteered to help. 
 
ITEM 9 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING THE INCLUSION OF SWMPs INTO 
THE GATEWAY IRWM PLAN 
 
 Ms. Kast reported that in order to complete the Stormwater Grant Prop 1 eligibility 
process, each watershed group must incorporate their respective Storm Water Resource Plans 
into the Gateway IRWM Plan by reference.  She stated that GWMA had received written 
requests from the LSGR, LLAR, LCC and LAR UR2 Watershed Groups requesting that their 
respective SWRPs be incorporated into the Gateway IRWM in accordance with the guidelines 
published by the State Water Resources Control Board on December 15, 2015.  Ms. Kast 
recommended that the Board approve resolutions to incorporate each of the 4 SWRPs into the 
Gateway IRWM Plan by reference as presented. 
 
 Director Nila motioned to approve resolutions as presented to incorporate each of the 4 
SWRPs into the Gateway IRWM Plan by reference.  The motion was seconded by Director 
Negrete and approved by the following voice vote:    
 

AYES: MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-
TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, 
KOURI, CASH, DOR, DE WITT 

 
Page 3 

 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes July 14, 2016 

 
 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
Director Legaspi left the meeting at 1:00 pm. 
 
ITEM 10 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT GROUPS 
 
Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 
  
 Director Nila reported on the current status of the Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 
2 Watershed Group and stated that the feasibility study and soil testing was being performed at 
six sites. 
 
Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
 
 None. 
  
Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 
 
 Director Arevalo reported on the current status of the Los Cerritos Channel Watershed 
Group.  
  
 
Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 
 
 None. 
 
Director Munoz left the meeting at 1:11 pm. 
Director’s Kouri and Arevalo left the meeting at 1:13 pm. 
 
ITEM 11 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 Ms. Kast reported that staff was currently soliciting proposals for a grant/project manager 
for the Advanced Meter Replacement regional project.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes July 14, 2016 

 
 
ITEM 12 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT 
 
 Director DeWitt gave an update on water testing in the Los Angeles River.  
  
 The meeting was adjourned at 1:17. 
 
 
  
___________________________________    ______________________ 
Steve Myrter, Secretary/Treasurer      Date 

Page 5 
 



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard 
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

August 11, 2016 

SECTION NO. 5(b) Warrant Register Dated August 2016 

SUMMARY: 

The Warrant Register is a listing of general checks issued since the last warrant 
register.  Warrants will be signed by 2 of the 3 Board Officers and released by Toni 
Penn, serving as the Administrative/Accounting Manager of the Gateway Water 
Management Authority, upon Board Approval. 

DISCUSSION: 

The Warrant Register for expenditures dated August 2016 in the amount of $124,660.17 
are submitted for approval.  Invoices and supporting documentation are available for 
review at the City of office of GWMA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Warrant Registers totals $124,660.17.  Funds to cover payment are available in the 
Gateway Authority budget. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Warrant Register for August as presented. 

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe 

Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B

WARRANT REGISTER

Disbursement Journal

August-16

Invoice Invoice

Date Vendor Number Description Amount

7/15/2016 AnchorQEA 47313 Harbor Toxics TMDL Monitoring for May $ 3,418.25

7/31/2016 Anchor QEA 47759 Harbor Toxics TMDL Monitoring for June $ 3,186.50

8/1/2016 City of Paramount 3465 Rent - August 2016 $ 330.27

07/27/16 CWE 16189 Upper Reach 2 WMP and CIMP Development $ 9,905.52

7/20/2016 GEI Consultants, inc. 3006431 Watersmart Grant Admin Service $ 3,432.00

08/01/16 6K Consultants 16-07-GWMA Professional and Accounting Services $ 23,182.50

07/18/16 Joe A Gonsalves & Son 154934 Legislative Advocacy Services for August $ 2,083.33

07/19/16 John L Hunter & Associates GAHT0616 Upstream Harbor Toxic for June $ 1,897.50

07/29/16 John L Hunter & Associates GANPLA0616 LLAR WMP Development for June $ 34,389.64

07/19/16 John L Hunter & Associates GANPSG0616 LSGR WMP Development for June $ 20,140.64

07/31/16 Platinum Consulting Group 30179 Accounting/Auditing Services for July $ 618.75

07/14/16 Richard Watson & Associates, Inc. 16-192-003-009 LCC Watershed Monitoring Program $ 12,338.80

07/31/16 Richards Watson Gershon 207893 Legal Services - General $ 1,123.50

07/31/16 Richards Watson Gershon 207894 Legal Services - Project Specific Services $ 4,950.00

07/31/16 Richards Watson Gershon 207895 Legal Services - MS4 Permit MOU $ 1,642.50

07/26/16 Stetson Engineers, Inc. 2608-102 20x2020 Regional Alliance Report $ 2,020.47

$ 124,660.17

Reviewed and Approved by:

Stbve Myrter, GWMA Secretary/Treas



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

August 11, 2016 

SECTION 6 – GWMA Audits for FY 2014/15 

SUMMARY 

The responsibility of an auditing firm is solely to express an opinion as to whether 
GWMA’s financial statements are fairly represented in all material respective and in 
conformity with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAP) and Government 
Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133 (if applicable). 

The opinions expressed by the auditors for FY 14/15 was that the financial statements 
were presented fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the GWMA as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position for 
the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.   

The auditor encountered no significant difficulties or disagreements in dealing with 
management in performing and completing these audits. 

The auditor did not note deficiencies in internal controls that could cause the financial 
statements to be materially misstated.  

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board receive and file the Annual Audited Financial Statements for FY 14/15 as 
presented.   

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe 

Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

�

���������	�	����	��

�

��������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6



�

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

�

	�����������	��	��

�

��������������

�
�

�

� �!�� ��"��� #"$%&'���!$%"�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((��

�

�$)�%�*��"+,# ���#�-�.#-/��"-"�*��"'�

�

�"-"�*��"�$0���"��$'#"#$��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((��

�

�"-"�*��"�$0��."#)#"#�'((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((1�

�

��� ��#�-�.#-/��"-"�*��"'�

�

�-/-�.���2��"�3��$)�%�*��"-/���� �((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((��

�

��.$�.#/#-"#$��$0�"2���$)�%�*��"-/���� ���

����-/-�.���2��"�"$�"2���"-"�*��"�$0���"��$'#"#$��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((4�

�

�"-"�*��"�$0���)����'���5!�� #"�%�'��-� ��2-�6�'�#����� �

� ����-/-�.��3��$)�%�*��"-/���� (((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((7�

�

��.$�.#/#-"#$��$0�"2���"-"�*��"�$0���)����'���5!�� #"�%�'��-� ��

����2-�6�'�#����� ��-/-�.��$0�"2���$)�%�*��"-/���� �"$�"2���"-"�*��"�$0��."#)#"#�'�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((8�

�

�"-"�*��"�$0��# �.#-%9���"��$'#"#$����# �.#-%9���� '�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((:�

�

�"-"�*��"�$0��2-�6�'�#���# �.#-%9���"��$'#"#$����# �.#-%9���� '�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((����

� �

�$"�'�"$��-'#.��#�-�.#-/��"-"�*��"'�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((����

�

��;�#%� ���!!/�*��"-%9��0$%*-"#$�<�

�

� �� 6�"-%9��$*!-%#'$���.2� �/�<�

� ����%-/���� �(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((��8�

�

� �



�
� � �
��������� ���������	�����
�������������������� ����������	��
�������������
����	����	��������� ����������������������
�������� ���������
���������
������
���������������������� �����	����		������ �!"�� �
	�������������� �!���
���	������
������� ��	#���"��!���!���� ��	#���"��$���!������
�	������������������� %��#��"��$���"$� � %��#���"��$���"$� ���
�������
��������� &&&�'()*+,-�*.'� &&&�'()*+,-�*.'�
�������/���	�������
�

�
	�


������������	����		��0��
	���������0�������������
�

����������������������
����%�������1��0���	�%���������������%��
������	�%��������%%������0���	�%�������������������%������	��
��������%%����	��

�������������
�����1���������

�
�.�2)3��.,45�.6��743*2.4-�
	.-��893(3-�,23&,:��397.8��82394,235��397.8,(�
���;,234��,8,93'382�/.782��.&34-��<2).472:�
�798,(��7((���,(76.487,�
�

�����������	��
�������������������

;3�),=3�,<57235�2)3�,**.'+,8:789�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�.6�2)3�9.=348'382,(�,*27=7273-��2)3�',>.4�6<85��,85�2)3�
,99439,23� 43',78789� 6<85� 786.4',27.8� .6� 2)3� 	.-� �893(3-� ,23&,:� �397.8� �82394,235� �397.8,(� ;,234�
�,8,93'382�/.782��.&34-��<2).472:� ?2)3��<2).472:@�,-�.6�,85� 6.4� 2)3� 67-*,(�:3,4�38535�/<83�����!�"���,85� 2)3�
43(,235�8.23-�2.�2)3�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-��&)7*)�*.((3*27=3(:�*.'+47-3�2)3��<2).472:1-�A,-7*�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�,-�
(7-235�78�2)3�2,A(3�.6�*.82382-��

���������������������������������	��
�������������������

�,8,93'382�7-�43-+.8-7A(3�6.4�2)3�+43+,4,27.8�,85�6,74�+43-382,27.8�.6�2)3-3�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�78�,**.45,8*3�
&72)� ,**.<82789� +478*7+(3-� 93834,((:� ,**3+235� 78� 2)3� 
87235� �2,23-� .6� �'347*,B� 2)7-� 78*(<53-� 2)3� 53-798��
7'+(3'382,27.8��,85�',78238,8*3�.6�782348,(�*.824.(�43(3=,82�2.�2)3�+43+,4,27.8�,85�6,74�+43-382,27.8�.6�678,8*7,(�
-2,23'382-�2),2�,43�6433�64.'�',2347,(�'7--2,23'382��&)32)34�5<3�2.�64,<5�.4�344.4��

�������������������������

�<4� 43-+.8-7A7(72:� 7-� 2.� 3C+43--� .+787.8-� .8� 2)3-3� 678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-� A,-35� .8� .<4� ,<572��;3� *.85<*235� .<4�
,<572�78�,**.45,8*3�&72)�,<572789�-2,85,45-�93834,((:�,**3+235�78�2)3�
87235��2,23-�.6��'347*,�,85�2)3�-2,85,45-�
,++(7*,A(3�2.�678,8*7,(�,<572-�*.82,7835�78�����������	
�����	�����������7--<35�A:�2)3��.'+24.((34�3834,(�.6�
2)3�
87235��2,23-���).-3�-2,85,45-� 43D<743� 2),2�&3�+(,8�,85�+346.4'�2)3�,<572� 2.�.A2,78� 43,-.8,A(3�,--<4,8*3�
,A.<2�&)32)34�2)3�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�,43�6433�64.'�',2347,(�'7--2,23'382��

�8� ,<572� 78=.(=3-� +346.4'789� +4.*35<43-� 2.� .A2,78� ,<572� 3=7538*3� ,A.<2� 2)3� ,'.<82-� ,85� 57-*(.-<43-� 78� 2)3�
678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-���)3�+4.*35<43-�-3(3*235�53+385�.8�2)3�,<572.41-�><59'382��78*(<5789�2)3�,--3--'382�.6�2)3�
47-E-� .6�',2347,(�'7--2,23'382� .6� 2)3� 678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-��&)32)34� 5<3� 2.� 64,<5� .4� 344.4�� �8�',E789� 2).-3� 47-E�
,--3--'382-��2)3�,<572.4�*.8-7534-�782348,(�*.824.(�43(3=,82�2.�2)3�38272:1-�+43+,4,27.8�,85�6,74�+43-382,27.8�.6�2)3�
678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�78�.4534�2.�53-798�,<572�+4.*35<43-�2),2�,43�,++4.+47,23�78�2)3�*74*<'-2,8*3-��A<2�8.2�6.4�2)3�
+<4+.-3�.6�3C+43--789�,8�.+787.8�.8�2)3�3663*27=383--�.6�2)3�38272:1-�782348,(�*.824.(���**.45789(:��&3�3C+43--�8.�
-<*)� .+787.8�� �8� ,<572� ,(-.� 78*(<53-� 3=,(<,2789� 2)3� ,++4.+47,2383--� .6� ,**.<82789� +.(7*73-� <-35� ,85� 2)3�
43,-.8,A(383--� .6� -798767*,82� ,**.<82789� 3-27',23-� ',53� A:� ',8,93'382�� ,-� &3((� ,-� 3=,(<,2789� 2)3� .=34,((�
+43-382,27.8�.6�2)3�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-��

;3�A3(73=3�2),2�2)3�,<572�3=7538*3�&3�),=3�.A2,7835�7-�-<667*7382�,85�,++4.+47,23�2.�+4.=753�,�A,-7-�6.4�.<4�,<572�
.+787.8-��

���������

�8�.<4�.+787.8�� 2)3� 678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-� 43634435� 2.�,A.=3� +43-382� 6,74(:�� 78�,((�',2347,(� 43-+3*2-�� 2)3� 43-+3*27=3�
678,8*7,(�+.-727.8�.6�2)3�9.=348'382,(�,*27=7273-��2)3�',>.4�6<85��,85�2)3�,99439,23�43',78789�6<85�786.4',27.8�.6�
2)3��<2).472:�,-�.6�/<83�����!�"���,85�2)3�43-+3*27=3�*),893-�78�678,8*7,(�+.-727.8�6.4�2)3�67-*,(�:3,4�2)38�38535�
78�,**.45,8*3�&72)�,**.<82789�+478*7+(3-�93834,((:�,**3+235�78�2)3�
87235��2,23-�.6��'347*,��



���������������������������������� ��!����������������������������������� ��!�

!�
�

!

�������	�������������	����������	

�**.<82789�+478*7+(3-�93834,((:�,**3+235�78�2)3�
87235��2,23-�.6��'347*,�43D<743�2),2�2)3�A<5932,4:�*.'+,47-.8�
786.4',27.8�.8�+,93�"��A3�+43-38235� 2.�-<++(3'382� 2)3�A,-7*� 678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-���<*)� 786.4',27.8��,(2).<9)�
8.2�,�+,42�.6� 2)3�A,-7*� 678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�� 7-�43D<7435�A:�2)3�.=348'382,(��**.<82789��2,85,45-��.,45��&).�
*.8-7534-� 72� 2.� A3� ,8� 3--3827,(� +,42� .6� 678,8*7,(� 43+.42789� 6.4� +(,*789� 2)3� A,-7*� 678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-� 78� ,8�
,++4.+47,23� .+34,27.8,(�� 3*.8.'7*�� .4� )7-2.47*,(� *.823C2�� ;3� ),=3� ,++(735� *342,78� (7'7235� +4.*35<43-� 2.� 2)3�
43D<7435� -<++(3'382,4:� 786.4',27.8� 78� ,**.45,8*3� &72)� ,<572789� -2,85,45-� 93834,((:� ,**3+235� 78� 2)3� 
87235�
�2,23-�.6��'347*,��&)7*)�*.8-7-235�.6� 78D<7473-�.6�',8,93'382�,A.<2� 2)3�'32).5-�.6�+43+,4789�2)3� 786.4',27.8�
,85�*.'+,4789�2)3�786.4',27.8�6.4�*.8-7-238*:�&72)�',8,93'3821-�43-+.8-3-�2.�.<4�78D<7473-��2)3�A,-7*�678,8*7,(�
-2,23'382-�� ,85� .2)34� E8.&(3593� &3� .A2,7835� 5<4789� .<4� ,<572� .6� 2)3� A,-7*� 678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-��;3� 5.� 8.2�
3C+43--�,8�.+787.8�.4�+4.=753�,8:�,--<4,8*3�.8�2)3�786.4',27.8�A3*,<-3�2)3�(7'7235�+4.*35<43-�5.�8.2�+4.=753�<-�
&72)�-<667*7382�3=7538*3�2.�3C+43--�,8�.+787.8�.4�+4.=753�,8:�,--<4,8*3��

��	�����������

�,8,93'382� ),-� .'72235� 2)3� �,8,93'3821-� �7-*<--7.8� ,85� �8,(:-7-� 2),2� ,**.<82789� +478*7+(3-� 93834,((:�
,**3+235� 78� 2)3�
87235��2,23-�.6��'347*,�43D<743�2.�A3�+43-38235�2.�-<++(3'382� 2)3�A,-7*� 678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-��
�<*)�'7--789�786.4',27.8��,(2).<9)�8.2�,�+,42�.6�2)3�A,-7*�678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-��7-�43D<7435�A:�2)3�.=348'382,(�
�**.<82789��2,85,45-��.,45�&).�*.8-7534-� 72� 2.�A3�,8�3--3827,(�+,42�.6� 678,8*7,(�43+.42789�6.4�+(,*789�2)3�A,-7*�
678,8*7,(� -2,23'382-� 78� ,8� ,++4.+47,23� .+34,27.8,(�� 3*.8.'7*�� .4� )7-2.47*,(� *.823C2�� �<4� .+787.8� .8� 2)3� A,-7*�
678,8*7,(�-2,23'382-�7-�8.2�,663*235�A:�2)7-�'7--789�786.4',27.8��

��	�������������������������������������������������������

�8�,**.45,8*3�&72)�����������	
�����	�����������&3�),=3�,(-.� 7--<35�.<4�43+.42�5,235�/<(:����!�"$��.8�.<4�
*.8-7534,27.8� .6� 2)3��<2).472:1-� 782348,(� *.824.(� .=34� 678,8*7,(� 43+.42789� ,85� .8� .<4� 23-2-� .6� 72-� *.'+(7,8*3�&72)�
*342,78�+4.=7-7.8-�.6� (,&-�� 439<(,27.8-��*.824,*2-��,85�94,82�,9433'382-�,85�.2)34�',2234-���)3�+<4+.-3�.6� 2),2�
43+.42� 7-� 2.�53-*47A3�2)3�-*.+3�.6�.<4� 23-2789�.6� 782348,(�*.824.(�.=34� 678,8*7,(�43+.42789�,85�*.'+(7,8*3�,85�2)3�
43-<(2-�.6�2),2�23-2789��,85�8.2�2.�+4.=753�,8�.+787.8�.8�782348,(�*.824.(�.=34�678,8*7,(�43+.42789�.4�.8�*.'+(7,8*3��
�),2� 43+.42� 7-� ,8� 782394,(� +,42� .6� ,8� ,<572� +346.4'35� 78� ,**.45,8*3� &72)�����������	 
�����	 ���������� 78�
*.8-7534789�2)3��<2).472:1-�782348,(�*.824.(�.=34�678,8*7,(�43+.42789�,85�*.'+(7,8*3��

�

�.--��	3=:����,42F)37'�		��
�<(=34��72:���,(76.487,�
/<(:����!�"$�
�

�



����������	


�������

�������

����	���	������������� ������������������

�����������������	�
� ����� !������������

���"��#	���$#�����  �%������������������

���	
�	����� ��&����������������

'(�)('(�(���

������������#	*	�
� %!��%+��������������

���,��	������������  �����+������������

���-������������.���������� ���������������������

���	
�
	�
���  %���%�������������

/���"0�(�(0/�

���,���������� !+��� ������������

1����������!%

�����2�/��03�/���"0�(�(0/

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	�������9

�



/���:�$#����;

5�������	���

��	�.���

/���"�����

��	�.��� 0#��	��.� �	#�	


8�� ��	����	��� ��	����	��� ����������	
�

�$#����� ������� ����������� ����������� �������

����������	
�	�������

���5�.��	
�<	�����	�	.����� % %�� !������ �&���������� =��������������� =������������� :����� !;�������

�����	
����������

(���������������

�����	
�.����	
��������

��	�.��������#����� :����� !;��������

/���#������	����.���.��8�8��	
�*�	� &� ��& ���������

/���#������	�������8�8��	
�*�	� !+��� ���������

"��.�	��5�������

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

�����2�/��03����(>(�(��

3�������3��	
�7�	��������1����������!%

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	�������9

&



�����	
�

3���

�������

�	���	������������� �������������������������

��������������	�
� ����� !�������������������

"��#	���$#�����  �%�������������������������

���	
�	����� ��&����������������������

'(�)('(�(����/-�3,/-�)�'�/���

'	�
���

���������#	*	�
� %!��%+��������������������

,��	������������  �����+�������������������

-������������.���������� ����������������������������

���	
�
	�
���  %���%��������������������

3�����	
	���

,�	��.��� !+��� ��������������������

���	
�
	�
����	���8�����	
	��� ��&����������������������

���������������

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

)�'�/����6����=��0>�5/2�/��'�3,/-

1����������!%

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	�������9

%



3�����	
	����8�������.���������	
�8��� !+��� ���������

/���#�������8�.���������	
�	������ !+��� ���������

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

5��0/�('(��(0/�03��6���0>�5/2�/��'�3,/-�)�'�/����6���

�0��6�������2�/��03�/���"0�(�(0/

1����������!%

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	�������9

�



�����	
�

3���

5��������

�����	
���������#�8��� �&��������������������

���	
��������� �&���������������������

�$#���������

"��8�����	
�8��� �����!&����������������

�����	���������� � %� % ����������������

���	
��$#�������� % %�� !����������������

/�����	�.����3����)	
	��� :����� !;��������������

3�����	
	����	����.���.��8�8��	
�*�	�� &� ��& ����������������

3�����	
	����	�������8�8��	
�*�	� !+��� ����������������

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

�����2�/��03�5�>�/,�����?"�/-(�,5�����/-

�6�/����(/�3,/-�)�'�/���=��0>�5/2�/��'�3,/-

3�������3��	
�7�	��������1����������!%

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	�������9

 



'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

5��0/�('(��(0/�03��6�������2�/��03�5�>�/,�����?"�/-(�,5�����/-

�6�/����(/�3,/-�)�'�/���03��6���0>�5/2�/��'�3,/-

�0��6�������2�/��03����(>(�(��

/�����	�.����8�����	
	����=�.���������	
�8��� :����� !;�������

��	�.��������#�������8�.���������	
�	������ :����� !;�������

3�������3��	
�7�	��������1����������!%

����	����#	�*�.�������	���	�����.�	
�#	����8��������	���8�	��	
���	������9

+



"��	���"��#���

������3����

��������

�	���	�������������� ����+�!�����������

��������������	�
� !+&��&!�������������

���	
�	����� ��%���!+�����������

'	�
�����

���������#	*	�
� �� �!� �������������

5�8���	�
����#���� !�&%!�����������������

���	
�
	�
���� ��+��!+�������������

-�8������(�8
�<���8�5��������

-�8������������� &��� !+�������������

���	
�-�8������(�8
�<���8�5�������� &��� !+�������������

�/���"������

,���������� !�++��+&&���������

�����2�/��03�3(-,�(�57�/���"0�(�(0/

3(-,�(�57�3,/-�

1����������!%

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

���������	�
��
�
����������
��
������	���������������
�
������������
���

�



"��	���"��#���

������3����

��������

'�����.�
���5����,##���5�	�� &����% �������������

'�������������	���
 && �!!+��������������

'�<���'�����.�
���5��� �&&�&&&��������������

��*��������@�:'��5; �&��&����������������

6	�������$� &+ ��  ��������������

���	
�	������ !�+�����%�����������

-���������

'�����.�
���5����,##���5�	�� �&�  +����������������

'�������������	���
 &�!� +���������������

'�<���'�����.�
���5��� �����%���������������

��*��������@�:'��5; ����! ���������������

6	�������$� ����  ���������������

���	
���������� !���%�&�������������

��	�.��������#����� %��� ����������������

/���"������	����.���.��8�8��	
�*�	�� !��! ��+!�����������

/���"������	�������8�8��	
�*�	� !�++��+&&����������

3(-,�(�57�3,/-

3�������3��	
�7�	��������1����������!%

'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

�����2�/��03��6�/����(/�3(-,�(�57�/���"0�(�(0/

���������	�
��
�
����������
��
������	���������������������
�
������������
���

��



11 

LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a. The Organization:

In July 2007, the Southeast Water Coalition and the Cities of Cerritos, Downey, Lakewood, 

Long Beach, Norwalk, Paramount, Pico River, Santa Fe Springs, Signal Hill, South Gate, et 

al. entered into a joint powers agreement creating the Los Angeles Gateway Region 

Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers Authority (the Authority). The purpose 

of the agreement is to create a regional water management group, as defined in and 

authorized by the IRWMPA, in order to create a regional water resources management plan 

that will protect and enhance regional water supplies, and to otherwise further the purposes 

of the Integrated Regional Water Management Powers Authority (IRWMPA), with respect to 

the Members' jurisdictional areas. The Authority can also perform other regional 

responsibilities for water development and management. 

The Authority will prepare and/or adopt a regional plan for the management of water 

resources, and for the implementation and operation of qualified projects or programs, and/or 

the preparation of qualified reports and studies, as those quoted terms are defined in the 

IRWMPA. The regional water resources management plan may more specifically address any 

of the matters set forth in California Water Code Section 10540(c) including, but not limited 

to, the following: ground water management planning; urban water management planning; 

the preparation of a water supply assessment; the planning, construction or modification of a 

flood management project, water recycling project, domestic water supply facility to meet 

safe drinking water standards, or a drainage water management unit; and/or the 

implementation of a water conservation program. The Authority may also exercise any other 

statutory authority which may now exist or be subsequently enacted to deal with ground 

water, storm water, water recharge, water recycling, water supply, water drainage, water 

conservation or any related urban water management subject within the purview of local or 

regional water agencies. 

The agreement has since been amended to add new members. The Authority's current 

members are the Central Basin Municipal Water District, Long Beach Water Department, 

Water Replenishment District, WRD of Southern California and the Cities of Artesia, 

Avalon, Bell, Bell Gardens, Bellflower, Cerritos, Commerce, Cudahy, Downey, Hawaiian 

Gardens, Huntington Park, La Mirada, Lakewood, Long Beach, Lynwood, Maywood, 

Montebello, Norwalk, Paramount, Pico Rivera, Santa Fe Springs, Signal Hill, South Gate, 

Vernon and Whittier. 

The term of the agreement continues until no less than three members remain, or until 

terminated by unanimous consent, provided that all liabilities of the Authority have been 

satisfied and all assets have been distributed. Upon termination of the agreement, the assets 

shall be distributed in a manner determined by a super-majority vote of the Board of 

Directors.



���

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�(�� ������������������	�������	����������@���	����A<�

B(� ���-'�%�*��"��$.�'�-� ��-'#'�$0��..$��"#�6<�

�

	2��6$)�%�*��"+,# ��-� �0# �.#-%9�0�� �0#�-�.#-/�'"-"�*��"'�-%��%�!$%"� ��'#�6� "2���.$�$*#.�

%�'$�%.�'� *�-'�%�*��"� 0$.�'� -� � "2�� -..%�-/� B-'#'� $0� -..$��"#�6(� �� �%� "2�� �.$�$*#.�

%�'$�%.�'� *�-'�%�*��"� 0$.�'�� -//� -''�"'� -� �  �0�%%� � $�"0/$,'�� -� � /#-B#/#"#�'� -� �  �0�%%� �

#�0/$,'� @,2�"2�%� .�%%��"� $%� �$�.�%%��"A� -''$.#-"� �,#"2� "2�#%� -."#)#"9� -%�� %�!$%"� (��!�%-"#�6�

'"-"�*��"'�!%�'��"�#�.%�-'�'�@%�)����'A�-� � �.%�-'�'�@�5!��'�'A�#��"$"-/���"�!$'#"#$�(��� �%�"2��

-..%�-/�B-'#'�$0�-..$��"#�6��%�)����'�-%��%�.$% � �,2����-%�� �-� ��5!��'�'�-%��%�.$% � �,2���

-�/#-B#/#"9�#'�#�.�%%� ��%�6-% /�''�$0�"2��"#*#�6�$0�%�/-"� �.-'2�0/$,'(�

�

�$)�%�*��"-/� 0�� � 0#�-�.#-/� '"-"�*��"'� -%�� %�!$%"� � �'#�6� "2�� .�%%��"� 0#�-�.#-/� %�'$�%.�'�

*�-'�%�*��"� 0$.�'� -� � "2��*$ #0#� � -..%�-/� B-'#'� $0� -..$��"#�6(��� �%� "2�� .�%%��"� 0#�-�.#-/�

%�'$�%.�'�*�-'�%�*��"� 0$.�'��$�/9�.�%%��"�-''�"'�-� �.�%%��"� /#-B#/#"#�'�-%��6���%-//9� #�./� � �

$�� "2�#%� B-/-�.�� '2��"'(� 	2�� %�!$%"� � 0�� � B-/-�.�� @��"� .�%%��"� -''�"'A� #'� .$�'# �%� � "$� B�� -�

*�-'�%�� $0� G-)-#/-B/�� '!�� -B/�� %�'$�%.�'G(� �$)�%�*��"-/� 0�� � $!�%-"#�6� '"-"�*��"'� !%�'��"�

#�.%�-'�'� @%�)����'� -� � $"2�%� 0#�-�.#�6� '$�%.�'A� -� �  �.%�-'�'� @�5!�� #"�%�'� -� � $"2�%�

0#�-�.#�6��'�'A�#����"�.�%%��"�-''�"'(��..$% #�6/9��"2�9�-%��'-# �"$�!%�'��"�-�'�**-%9�$0�'$�%.�'�

-� ��'�'�$0�G-)-#/-B/��'!�� -B/��%�'$�%.�'G� �%#�6�-�!�%#$ (�

�

�� �%� "2��*$ #0#� �-..%�-/�B-'#'�$0�-..$��"#�6�� %�)����'�-%��.$�'# �%� � "$�B��-)-#/-B/��,2���

"2�9�-%��.$//�."#B/��,#"2#��"2��.�%%��"�!�%#$ �$%�'$$����$�62�"2�%�-0"�%� "$�!-9�/#-B#/#"#�'�$0�"2��

.�%%��"�!�%#$ (��$%�"2#'�!�%!$'��� "2��6$)�%�*��"�.$�'# �%'�%�)����'�"$�B��-)-#/-B/��#0� "2�9�-%��

.$//�."� � ,#"2#�� 4��  -9'� $0� "2�� �� � $0� "2�� .�%%��"� 0#'.-/� !�%#$ (� �5!�� #"�%�'� 6���%-//9� -%��

%�.$% � �,2���-�/#-B#/#"9�#'�#�.�%%� (�

�

	2����"2$%#"9�%�!$%"'�"2��0$//$,#�6�*-?$%�6$)�%�*��"-/�0�� <�

�

����%-/���� +�	2������%-/���� �#'�"2��6���%-/�$!�%-"#�6�0�� �$0�"2����"2$%#"9(�"�#'��'� �

"$� -..$��"� 0$%� -//� 0#�-�.#-/� %�'$�%.�'� �5.�!"� "2$'�� %�;�#%� � "$� B�� -..$��"� � 0$%� #�� $"2�%�

0�� '(�

�

�  #"#$�-//9��"2����"2$%#"9�%�!$%"'�"2��0$//$,#�6�0�� �"9!�<�

�

�%#)-"�� ��%!$'�� 	%�'"� ��� '+� �'� � "$� -..$��"� 0$%� .�'"$ #-/� %�'!$�'#B#/#"#�'� 0$%� "2��

,-"�%'2� �!%$?�."'(��%#)-"��!�%!$'��"%�'"�0�� '�-%��-..$��"� �0$%�$��-�������������	�
���	�

*�-'�%�*��"�0$.�'�-� �0�//�-..%�-/�B-'#'�$0�-..$��"#�6(�

�

�

�

�

�



���

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�

�(� ������������������	�������	����������@���	����A<�

.(� �-'2�-� ��)�'"*��"'<�
�

	2�� ��"2$%#"9C'� .-'2� -� � #�)�'"*��"'� -%�� !$$/� � ,#"2� "2�� �#"9� $0� �#6�-/� �#//C'� .-'2� -� �

#�)�'"*��"'(� �)�'"*��"'� -%�� '"-"� � -"� 0-#%� )-/��� @;�$"� � *-%>�"� !%#.�� $%� "2�� B�'"� -)-#/-B/��

�'"#*-"�� "2�%�$0A(� ���� "2�� �#"9&'� ����-/� �#�-�.#-/� ��!$%"� 0$%� *$%�� #�0$%*-"#$�� $�� #�)�'"� �

.-'2(�

 (� ��0�%%� ���"0/$,'�-� ��0/$,'�$0���'$�%.�'<�
�

��%'�-�"�"$�������"-"�*��"��$'(�4��-� �4���"2����"2$%#"9�%�.$6�#=�'� �0�%%� �$�"0/$,'�-� �

#�0/$,'�$0�%�'$�%.�'(���0�%%� �$�"0/$,�-� �#�0/$,�$0�%�'$�%.�'�-%�� �0#�� �-'�-�.$�'�*!"#$��$%�

%�'$�%.��$0���"�!$'#"#$��B9�"2��6$)�%�*��"�"2-"�#'�-!!/#.-B/��"$�-�0�"�%��%�!$%"#�6�!�%#$ (�	2��

 �0�%%� �#�0/$,'�#�./� �� �0�%%� �%�)����'(�

�(� ��� ��;�#"9<�

��� �B-/-�.��#'�%�!$%"� �#��"2��0�� �'"-"�*��"'�-'�0$//$,'<�

��-''#6�� ���� ��-/-�.�� +�	2#'� ./-''#0#.-"#$�� #�./� �'� "2�� %�*-#�#�6� '!�� -B/�� -*$��"'�,2#.2�
-%���$"�%�'"%#."� ��.$**#""� ��-''#6�� �$%��$�'!�� -B/�(�

"� #'� "2����"2$%#"9C'�!$/#.9� "2-"� %�'"%#."� �%�'$�%.�'�,#//�B��-!!/#� �0#%'"�� 0$//$,� �B9�@#��$% �%�$0�
-!!/#.-"#$�A� .$**#""� �� -''#6�� � -� � ��-''#6�� � %�'$�%.�'�� #�� "2�� -B'��.�� $0� -� 0$%*-/� !$/#.9�
- $!"� �B9�"2���$-% �$0��#%�."$%'(�
�
������"-"�*��"��$(�4��%�;�#%�'�"2-"�"2�� #00�%��.��B�",����-''�"'�-  � �"$�"2�� �0�%%� �$�"0/$,'�

$0�%�'$�%.�'�-� �/#-B#/#"#�'�-  � �"$�"2�� �0�%%� �#�0/$,'�$0�%�'$�%.�'�B��%�!$%"� �-'���"�!$'#"#$�(���

�

��"��$'#"#$�� #'� #)# � � #�"$� "2%���.-!"#$�'��� �%�������"-"�*��"��$(��1(�	2�'��.-!"#$�'�-!!/9�

$�/9� "$� ��"� �$'#"#$�� -'�  �"�%*#�� � -"� "2�� �$)�%�*��"+,# �� -� � 0# �.#-%9� 0�� � /�)�/�� -� � -%��

 �'.%#B� �B�/$,<�

�

�������	������������������		��	� �'.%#B�'�"2��!$%"#$��$0���"��$'#"#$��,2#.2�#'�%�!%�'��"� �B9�"2��

.�%%��"���"�B$$>�)-/���$0� "2����"2$%#"9&'�.-!#"-/�-''�"'�� /�''� "2��$�"'"-� #�6�B-/-�.��$0�-�9� �B"�

#''�� �"$�0#�-�.��"2�'��.-!#"-/�-''�"'(�

�

��	��������  �'.%#B�'� "2�� !$%"#$�� $0� ��"� �$'#"#$�� ,2#.2� #'� %�'"%#."� � -'� "$� �'�� B9� "2�� "�%*'� -� �

.$� #"#$�'�$0�-6%��*��"'�,#"2�$�"'# ��!-%"#�'��6$)�%�*��"-/�%�6�/-"#$�'��/-,'��$%�$"2�%�%�'"%#."#$�'�

,2#.2�"2����"2$%#"9�.-��$"���#/-"�%-//9�-/"�%(��

�

�

�



�1�
�

44���4:H������

����8���:�����

��������8H���

�$)�%�*��"+,# ��'"-"�*��"�$0���"�!$'#"#$�<

������;�#"9�#���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//�.-'2�-� �#�)�'"*��"�!$$/

�# �.#-%9�0�� �'"-"�*��"�$0���"�!$'#"#$�<

������;�#"9�#���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//�.-'2�-� �#�)�'"*��"�!$$/

	$"-/

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�
�(� ������������������	�������	����������@���	����A<�
�

�(� ��� ��;�#"9�@�$�"#��� A<�
�

��'"%#."� ���"�!$'#"#$��#'���"�!$'#"#$��"2-"�#'�'�B?�."�"$�.$�'"%-#�"'��#"2�%�@�A��5"�%�-//9�#*!$'� �B9�
.%� #"$%'� @'�.2� -'�  �B"� .$)��-�"'A�� 6%-�"$%'�� .$�"%#B�"$%'�� $%� /-,'� $%� %�6�/-"#$�� $0� $"2�%�
6$)�%�*��"'� $%� @�A� #*!$'� � B9� /-,� "2%$�62� .$�'"#"�"#$�-/� !%$)#'#$�'� $%� ��-B/#�6� /�6#'/-"#$�(��
	2�%��,-'��$���"�!$'#"#$��-"���������������"2-"�,-'�%�'"%#."� �B9���-B/#�6�/�6#'/-"#$�(��

�

����	�������� �'.%#B�'�"2��!$%"#$��$0���"��$'#"#$��,2#.2�#'��$"�%�'"%#."� �-'�"$��'�(�

0(� �'"#*-"�'<�
�

	2�� !%�!-%-"#$�� $0� 0#�-�.#-/� '"-"�*��"'� #�� .$�0$%*#"9� ,#"2� -..$��"#�6� !%#�.#!/�'� 6���%-//9�
-..�!"� � #�� "2�� ��#"� � �"-"�'� $0� �*�%#.-� %�;�#%�'� *-�-6�*��"� "$� *->�� �'"#*-"�'� -� �
-''�*!"#$�'� "2-"� -00�."� "2�� %�!$%"� � -*$��"'� $0� -''�"'� -� � /#-B#/#"#�'� -� �  #'./$'�%�� $0�
.$�"#�6��"�-''�"'�-� �/#-B#/#"#�'�-"�"2�� -"��$0�"2��0#�-�.#-/�'"-"�*��"'�-� �"2��%�!$%"� �-*$��"�
$0� %�)����'� -� � �5!�� #"�%�'�  �%#�6� "2�� %�!$%"#�6� !�%#$ (� �."�-/� %�'�/"'� .$�/ �  #00�%� 0%$*�
"2$'���'"#*-"�'(�

�

�(�������������F��	���	�<�

�-'2�-� ��)�'"*��"'��

�-'2�-� �#�)�'"*��"'�2�/ �-"���������������.$�'#'"� �$0�"2��0$//$,#�6<�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�



���

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�(� ����������F��	���	��@���	����A<�

�;�#"9�#���-'2�-� ��)�'"*��"��$$/�$0�"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//��

	2�� ��"2$%#"9�  $�'� �$"� 2-)�� -� '�!-%-"�� B-�>� -..$��"E� 2$,�)�%�� "2�� ��"2$%#"9C'� .-'2� -� �
#�)�'"*��"'� -%�� *-#�"-#�� � #�� -�� #�)�'"*��"� !$$/� *-�-6� � B9� "2�� �#"9� $0� �#6�-/� �#//(� 	2��
��"2$%#"9� #'� -� )$/��"-%9� !-%"#.#!-�"� #�� "2-"� !$$/(� 	2#'� !$$/� #'� 6$)�%�� � B9�� -� � �� �%� "2��
%�6�/-"$%9� $)�%'#62"� $0�� "2�� �)�'"*��"� �$/#.9� - $!"� � B9� "2�� �#"9� �$��.#/� $0� "2�� �#"9� $0�
�#6�-/��#//(�	2����"2$%#"9�2-'��$"�- $!"� �-��#�)�'"*��"�!$/#.9�'�!-%-"��0%$*�"2-"�$0�"2���#"9�
$0� �#6�-/� �#//(� 	2�� 0-#%� )-/��� $0� 	2�� ��"2$%#"9C'� #�)�'"*��"� #�� "2#'� !$$/� #'� %�!$%"� � #�� "2��
-..$*!-�9#�6�0#�-�.#-/�'"-"�*��"'�-"�-*$��"'�B-'� ��!$��"2����"2$%#"9C'�!%$+%-"-�'2-%��$0�"2��
0-#%� )-/��� .-/.�/-"� � B9� "2�� �#"9� 0$%� "2�� ��"#%�� �#"9� !$%"0$/#$(� 	2�� B-/-�.�� -)-#/-B/�� 0$%�
,#"2 %-,-/�#'�B-'� �$��"2��-..$��"#�6�%�.$% '�*-#�"-#�� �B9�"2���#"9��,2#.2�-%��%�.$% � �$��
-��$%#6#�-/�.$'"�B-'#'(�

�#'./$'�%�'���/-"#�6�"$��"�%�'"��-"���#'>�

�"�%�'"�%-"��%#'>�#'�"2��%#'>�"2-"�.2-�6�'�#��*-%>�"�#�"�%�'"�%-"�'�,#//�- )�%'�/9�-00�."�"2��0-#%�)-/���

$0�-��#�)�'"*��"(�����%-//9��"2��/$�6�%�"2��*-"�%#"9�$0�-��#�)�'"*��"�#'��"2��6%�-"�%�"2��'��'#"#)#"9�

$0� #"'� 0-#%�)-/��� "$�.2-�6�'� #��*-%>�"� #�"�%�'"� %-"�'(�����$0� "2��,-9'� "2-"� "2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//�

*-�-6�'�#"'��5!$'�%��"$�#�"�%�'"�%-"��%#'>�#'�B9�!�%.2-'#�6�-�.$*B#�-"#$��$0�'2$%"�%�"�%*�-� �/$�6�%�

"�%*� #�)�'"*��"'� -� � B9� "#*#�6� .-'2� 0/$,'� 0%$*�*-"�%#"#�'� '$� "2-"� -� !$%"#$�� $0� "2�� !$%"0$/#$� #'�

*-"�%#�6�$%�.$*#�6�./$'��"$�*-"�%#"9��)��/9�$)�%�"#*��-'���.�''-%9�"$�!%$)# ��"2��.-'2�0/$,�-� �

/#;�# #"9���� � �0$%�$!�%-"#$�'(�

�0$%*-"#$��-B$�"�"2����"2$%#"9C'��5!$'�%��"$�#�"�%�'"�%-"��%#'>�-'�-�%�'�/"�$0�#"'��;�#"9�#��"2��.-'2�

-� �#�)�'"*��"�!$$/�$0�"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//�#'�!%$)# � �B9� #'./$'�%�'�#��"2���$"�'�"$�"2��B-'#.�

0#�-�.#-/�'"-"�*��"'�$0�"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//�"2-"�'2$,'�"2�� #'"%#B�"#$��$0�"2���#"9C'�#�)�'"*��"'�

B9�*-"�%#"9(�

�#'./$'�%�'���/-"#�6�"$��%� #"��#'>�

����%-//9��.%� #"�%#'>�#'�"2��%#'>�"2-"�-��#''��%�$0�-��#�)�'"*��"�,#//��$"�0�/0#//�#"'�$B/#6-"#$��"$�"2��

2$/ �%�$0�"2��#�)�'"*��"(�	2#'�#'�*�-'�%� �B9�"2��-''#6�*��"�$0�-�%-"#�6�B9�-��-"#$�-//9�%�.$6�#=� �

'"-"#'"#.-/� %-"#�6� $%6-�#=-"#$�(� �#�#*�*� %-"#�6'� %�;�#%� � B9� @,2�%�� -!!/#.-B/�A� "2�� �-/#0$%�#-�

�$)�%�*��"��$ ��-� �"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//C'��)�'"*��"��$/#.9�-� �"2��-."�-/�%-"#�6'�-'�$0�0#'.-/�

9�-%+�� � 0$%��-.2� #�)�'"*��"� "9!��-%��!%$)# � �B9� #'./$'�%�'� #�� "2���$"�'� "$� "2��B-'#.� 0#�-�.#-/�

'"-"�*��"'�$0�"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//(�

�

�

�

�



�4�
�

7����:8H���������

1���7�8�����������

��������4H������

�# �.#-%9���� 

�������*B�%��$�"%#B�"#$��"$�
-"�%'2� ��."#)#"9

	$"-/

�$)�%�*��"-/���� 

�������*B�%'2#!����'

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�(�������������F��	���	��@���	����A<�

�$�.��"%-"#$��$0��%� #"��#'>�

�)�'"*��"'� #�� -�9�$��� #''��%� @$"2�%� "2-���(�(�	%�-'�%9� '�.�%#"#�'��*�"�-/� 0�� '� -� � #�)�'"*��"�

!$$/'A� "2-"� %�!%�'��"� �I� $%�*$%�� $0� "$"-/� #�)�'"*��"'� 0$%� "2�� ��"#%�� ��"#"9� @$%� 0$%� �-.2� '�!-%-"��

*-?$%�0�� �$%�0$%�$"2�%�6$)�%�*��"-/�0�� '�#��"2��-66%�6-"�A�-%�� #'./$'� �#��"2���$"�'�"$�"2��B-'#.�

0#�-�.#-/�'"-"�*��"'�$0�"2���#"9�$0��#6�-/��#//(�

��'"$ #-/��%� #"��#'>�

	2����"2$%#"9�  $�'� �$"� 2-)�� -�9� '#6�#0#.-�"� .�%"#0#.-"�'� $0�  �!$'#"� $%�  �*-� � -..$��"'� "2-"� -%��

'�B?�."�"$�.�'"$ #-/�.%� #"�%#'>� #'./$'�%��@-'� �0#�� �B9�������"-"�*��"��$(�1�A(�	2����"2$%#"9�

 $�'��$"�2-)�� #%�."�#�)�'"*��"'�#��'�.�%#"#�'�'�B?�."�"$�.�'"$ #-/�.%� #"�%#'>� #'./$'�%��@-'� �0#�� �

B9�������"-"�*��"��$(�1�A(�

�

�(� ��������D�����������F����<�
�

�"� ����� ���� ������ .$*!$���"'� $0�  �0�%%� � $%� ���-%�� � %�)����� #�� "2�� 0�� � 0#�-�.#-/�
'"-"�*��"'�,�%��-'�0$//$,'<�

�

�

�

�

�
�
1(�� �J������J����	����<�
�

	2�%��,�%�� �$� �5!�� #"�%�'� #�� �5.�''� $0� -!!%$!%#-"#$�'�,#"2#�� "2�� 6���%-/� 0�� � 0$%� "2�� 0#'.-/�
9�-%(�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�



�7�

�

��������������	�
���������

�	����	�����������
�	������������	�

���	���
������	���	��

��	���	����������������	�	����	��

��������������

�(�������	���	�<�
�

���������
���.$�"#��� �-."#�6�-'�"2��.$�"%-."�-/�-� �0# �.#-%9�-6��.9�0$%� 0#)��6%$�!'�$0�

'"$%*,-"�%� !�%*#"��'�  $#�6� '"$%*,-"�%+%�/-"� � !/-��#�6�� *$�#"$%#�6� -� � #*!/�*��"-"#$��

"2%$�62$�"� �$'� ��6�/�'� �$��"9(� ��)�%-/� 0� �%-/� -� � '"-"�� 6%-�"'� 0$%� *�/"#+!-%"9� %�.#!#��"�

!%$?�."'�,�%����"�%� �#�"%$�-� �- *#�#'"�%� �B9��
��(�

�

4(���������������	�������<�

�

	2���$-% �$0��#%�."$%'�- $!"'�-��-���-/�B� 6�"��,2#.2�B�6#�'�$����/9��(�����-/�-!!%$!%#-"#$�'�-%��

-!!%$)� � B9� "2���$-% � $0��#%�."$%'� !%#$%� "$� "2�� B�6#��#�6� $0� �-.2� 9�-%� $%� '2$%"/9� "2�%�-0"�%(��//�

-!!%$!%#-"#$�'�/-!'��-"�9�-%+�� (�	2���$-% �$0��#%�."$%'�2-'�"2��/�6-/�-�"2$%#"9�"$�-*�� �"2��B� 6�"�

-"�-�9�"#*�� �%#�6�"2��0#'.-/�9�-%(�

�

�



'0���/��'�������4�7�5��(0/

(/���5���-�5��(0/�'�4���5�2�/���2�/�

10(/��"04�5���,�605(�7

),-����57��02"�5(�0/���6�-,'�

��/�5�'�3,/-

3�������3��	
�7�	��������1����������!%

>	�	����<��

)��.������������ 3�	
�)��.��

"�����

0�.�	
 3�	
 ����	
 :/�.	���;

5��������

�����	
���������#�8��� ����%��������� ����%��������� �&������������ !��%�����������

���	
�5������� ����%���������� ����%���������� �&������������� !��%������������

�$#���������

"��8�����	
�������� �&%������������ �&%������������ �����!&�������� &&� +�����������

�����	���������� ��%������������ ��%������������ � %� % �������� %���&�����������

���	
��$#�������� �+������������� �+������������� % %�� !�������� !�&������������

/�����	�.����3����)	
	��� :�%��%��;������� :�%��%��;������� :����� !;������� !���%����������

3����)	
	����=�)�.���.

�8�3��	
�7�	� &� ��& �������� &� ��& �������� &� ��& �������� �����������������

3����)	
	����=�����
�8�3��	
�7�	� % �!& ��������� % �!& ��������� !+��� �������� !���%���������

!+



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

August 11, 2016 

SECTION NO. 7 – ACTION/DISCUSSION REGARDING PROP 84 IRWM 2015 GRANT 

SUMMARY 

The 2015 Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation 
Grant will provide funding from the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood 
Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 to Los Angeles County Flood 
Control District to assist in financing implementation projects associated with the Greater 
Los Angeles County Region Integrated Regional Water Management Plan.  For the 
Region’s IRWM projects funded under the Grant Agreement, the LACFCD has been 
designated as the regional entity to apply for grants on behalf of all proposed projects for 
the Region through the IRWM Process.   

Four of GWMA’s projects were selected to receive funding under this Grant, which are: 1) 
the Advance Meter Replacement Project, 2) the Southeast Water Efficiency Project, 3) the 
Gateway Cities Regional Recycled Water System Expansion Project, and 4) the 
Paramount Blvd. Turf Replacement Project for a total grant amount of $3,412,615. 

DISCUSSION 

GWMA must enter into an MOU with LACFCD to serve as the Local Project Sponsor by 
which GWMA will receive a total grant of Three Million Nine Hundred Forty-one Thousand 
Nine Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars, ($3,941,966.00).  This amount will be distributed amongst 
4 subrecipient templates in the following manner:  

PROJECT 1 
One Million Four Hundred Sixty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Five Hundred, 
($1,469,665.00), has been earmarked to assist the cities of Bellflower, Cerritos, 
Commerce, Downey, Lakewood, Norwalk, South Gate, Whittier and Pico Rivera Water 
Authority, Long Beach Water Department and the Pico Water Districts, (Subrecipients), 
with an Advanced Water Meter Replacement (AMR) project, associated with the 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Project.  

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe 

Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



 

 
16401 Paramount Boulevard  
Paramount, CA 90723 
562.663.6850 phone  
562-634-8216 fax  

www.gatewaywater.org

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 

PROJECT 2 
Nine Hundred Twenty Thousand Eight Hundred Ten Dollars and Seventy Cents, 
($920,810.70), has been earmarked specifically to assist the Subrecipient with the 
Gateway Cities Regional Recycled Water System Expansion Project. 

PROJECT 3 
One Million Dollars, ($1,000,000.00), is earmarked to specifically assist the City of 
Lakewood, with the Paramount Boulevard Turf Replacement Project that will conserve 
water by replacing turf in the City of Lakewood. 

PROJECT 4 
Seven Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Two Dollars, ($745,902.00), has 
been earmarked to assist the Central Basin Municipal Water District with a water 
conservation audit and retrofit project. 

All of the subrecipients were given an opportunity to review the draft agreements. 

RECOMMENDATION 

a. Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the LACFCD and GWMA and
authorize the Executive Officer to make Non-Material Changes to the MOU in
Consultation with Legal Counsel, if Needed.

b. Authorize the Chair to Sign and Execute the Memorandum of Understanding between
the LACFCD and GWMA.

c. Approve Individual Subrecipient Agreements with participants of the Advance Meter
Replacement Project, the Southeast Water Efficiency Project, the Gateway Cities
Regional Recycled Water System Expansion Project, and the Paramount Blvd. Turf
Replacement Project as presented.

d. Authorize the Executive Officer to Sign and Execute Individual Subrecipient
Agreements with participants of the Advance Meter Replacement Project, the
Southwest Water Efficiency Project, the Gateway Cities Regional Recycled Water
System Expansion Project, and the Paramount Blvd. Turf Replacement Project.

Christopher Cash (Paramount), Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa (Norwalk), Vice-Chair • Steve Myrter (Signal Hill), Secretary/Treasurer 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
 Huntington Park · La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe 

Springs · Signal Hill ·South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



























DRAFT 07/14/2016 AMR Subrecipient Agreement 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF BELLFLOWER AND THE LOS ANGELES 
GATEWAY REGION INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

This Subrecipient Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ____________ ___, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) and is between the __________, a California municipal corporation 
(“Subrecipient”) and the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Joint Powers Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority (“GWMA”). 

RECITALS 

A. GWMA is a member of the Greater Los Angeles County Region (“Region”) 
Integrated Regional Water Management (“IRWM”) Group.  As a part of the Region’s IRWM 
Plan, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (“LACFCD”) has entered into that certain 
Grant Agreement dated ____________ ___, 2016 (“Grant Agreement”) with the Department of 
Water Resources of the State of California (“DWR”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, for project grant funding relating to water 
conversation and water efficiency projects as described in the Region’s IRWM Plan.   

B. For the Region’s IRWM projects funded under the Grant Agreement, the 
LACFCD has been designated as the regional entity to apply for grant funds on behalf of all 
proposed projects, including the Subrecipient’s Sub-Project, for the Region through the IRWM 
process;  

C. GWMA has entered into that certain Memorandum of Understanding, dated 
____________ ___, 2016 (“MOU”) with LACFCD, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, by which GWMA will serve as the Local 
Project Sponsor and will receive a total grant of Three Million Nine Hundred Forty-One 
Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Six Dollars ($3,941,966.00) of which One Million Four Hundred 
Sixty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars ($1,469,665.00) is earmarked specifically 
to assist the Cities of Bellflower, Cerritos, Commerce, Downey, Lakewood, Norwalk, South 
Gate, Whittier and Pico Rivera Water Authority, Long Beach Water Department and the Pico 
Water District (“Subrecipients”), with an Advanced Water Meter Replacement (“AMR”) project 
(the “Project”), associated with the Gateway Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (the 
“IRWMP”). 

D. The Parties desire for GWMA to process grant reimbursement requests and to hire 
a project manager on behalf of the Subrecipient in exchange for a [3 percent or 5 percent] 
administrative fee of the entire Project cost, as outlined in this Agreement.  

Now, therefore, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS

1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  Subrecipient shall replace or cause to be replaced
water meters at customer service connections with Advanced Meter Reading (“AMR”) units that 
have advanced reading technology capabilities (the “Sub-Project”) in accordance with the Work 

-1- 
12664-0003\1943703v3.doc 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



Plan, Budget and Schedule set forth in Exhibits A, B and C, respectively, of the Grant 
Agreement, consistent with the Subrecipient’s public project bidding procedures and 
requirements.  The Sub-Project shall include the replacement of approximately ________ water 
meters with an equivalent number of AMR units within Subrecipient’s jurisdiction.  Subrecipient 
shall act on GWMA’s behalf for purposes of management, oversight, compliance, operations and 
maintenance of the Sub-Project in accordance with the Grant Agreement.   

1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be 
___________________________________ Dollars ($______).  Subrecipient shall invest a 
minimum of _________________________ Dollars ($_________) of its own funds, which 
constitutes at least _______ percent (___%) of the cost of the Sub-Project, to the Sub-Project, in 
accordance with the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall document and submit documentation 
reflecting the Subrecipient’s internal costs and total Sub-Project costs to GWMA to demonstrate 
the Subrecipient’s required cost share obligations under this Agreement prior to GWMA 
reimbursing the Subrecipient.   

1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) 
solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Funds shall be 
used solely to reimburse the actual expenses incurred by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-
Project.  Subrecipient shall apply the Funds only to eligible Sub-Project costs as specified in 
Section 10 of the Grant Agreement and in accordance with applicable provisions of the law and 
Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement. 

1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on 
GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant 
Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges it is familiar with and agrees that it shall comply with all requirements under the 
MOU and the Grant Agreement.  

1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations 
pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that 
Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreement, 
regarding adopting and enforcing a labor compliance program.  Subrecipient acknowledges that 
GWMA does not have a labor compliance program and that GWMA will not fulfill any 
responsibilities under Section 17 of the Grant Agreement on behalf of the subrecipient.   

1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of 
sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of 
audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR. 

1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed 
under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules 
and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency having jurisdiction at the time of 
performance. 

Page 2 of 12 



1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient 
has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under 
the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Grant 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for complying with any DWR or LACFCD 
demands, determinations, fines or other such actions or penalties initiated by DWR because of 
the default.  Furthermore, if Subrecipient defaults under the MOU or the Grant Agreement or 
causes GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in 
Section 13 of the Grant Agreement, GWMA may terminate this Agreement, and Subrecipient 
shall immediately forfeit its right to the Funds, shall not be entitled to reimbursement for any of 
Subrecipient’s costs for its Sub-Project, and shall repay any Funds to DWR with interest, which 
shall be equal to the State of California general obligation bond interest rate in effect at the time 
of the default, pursuant to Section 13 of the Grant Agreement.  No non-defaulting Subrecipient, 
non-participating GWMA member, or GWMA as a whole shall be in any way responsible for 
satisfying any DWR or LACFCD demands made in response to a default of the Grant Agreement 
or the MOU by Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient is found to have defaulted under the Grant 
Agreement or the MOU, it shall remain obligated under this Agreement and remain responsible 
to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations under Section 1.1. 

1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be 
reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed $_______________, which represents 2.5 
percent of Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, for grant administrative costs, management, 
and project oversight efforts with respect to the IRWM and Grant Agreement and MOU 
requirements, which has been subtracted from the Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, as 
reflected in Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient thereby agrees that it will be 
reimbursed [insert grant amount minus 2.5 % LACFCD fee] by GWMA under this Agreement, 
consistent with and subject to the provisions of Section 3.1 of this Agreement.   

1.10 GWMA Administrative Fee.  Within thirty (30) days of the execution of this 
Agreement, but in no event later than September 1, 2016, Subrecipient shall submit a GWMA 
Administrative Fee in the amount of _____________________________________ dollars, 
which represents [choose one: 3 percent for GWMA members and 5 percent for non-members] 
of the entire Project cost, to GWMA for GWMA staff administrative costs with respect to Grant 
Agreement and MOU requirements.   

1.11 Direct Project Administrative Fee.  Within thirty (30) days of the execution of this 
Agreement, but in no event later than September 1, 2016, Subrecipient shall submit a Direct 
Project Administrative Fee, which covers the costs of hiring the Consultant, in the amount of 
Fourth Thousand Five Hundred Forty-Five Dollars and Forty-Five Cents ($4,545.45), to GWMA 
for the costs of hiring a consultant to manage the Project.  After DWR reimburses GWMA for 
the Direct Project Administrative Costs, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for the Direct 
Project Administrative Fee in accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement.      

2. GWMA OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and 
respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant 
administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

Page 3 of 12 
 



2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant 
reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which 
will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds from 
LACFCD related to the invoices submitted, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient consistent with 
Section 3.3 of this Agreement.   

2.3 Hiring of Project Manager Consultant.  On behalf of Subrecipient, GWMA shall 
hire a project manager (“Consultant”) for managing the project deliverable requirements set forth 
in the Grant Agreement and the MOU, relating to reporting and compliance.  Said Consultant 
shall collect all information required by DWR under the Grant Agreement from the Subrecipient, 
coordinate and submit project deliverables on behalf of the Subrecipient to LACFCD on or 
before deadlines pursuant to the Grant Agreement.    

3. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in 
this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed (grant amount 
less 2.5% County fee)  Dollars ($_________), which shall constitute GWMA’s full obligation to 
Subrecipient, unless GWMA receives additional funds from DWR for the completion of the Sub-
Project.  If the funds are insufficient to complete the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall secure and 
provide such additional non-Grant funds necessary to complete the Sub-Project.  
Reimbursement, if any, by GWMA is conditioned upon receipt of such funds by GWMA from 
DWR and obtaining all required approvals from DWR, including environmental clearances.  If 
DWR funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, GWMA shall not have any 
obligation to reimburse Subrecipient through any other source of GWMA funds. 

3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member 
be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the 
Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds allocated to Subrecipient 
are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way, neither GWMA nor the GWMA 
members that are not named as the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall be held liable for any 
costs.  Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for any costs associated with the Sub-Project in 
the event that the Funds are not forthcoming for any reason, or in the event that the Funds 
allocated to Subrecipient are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way. 

3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon 
Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project 
costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Agreement, and 
supporting documentation; (ii) deliverables, as specified in Section 18 of and Exhibit A to the 
Grant Agreement; (iii) the plans, specifications, environmental documentation and monitoring 
plan described in Section 8.e) of the Grant Agreement; (iv) the audited financial statements 
required under Section 8.a) of the Grant Agreement; (v) all applicable reports required under 
Section 18 of the Grant Agreement; and (vi) evidence of compliance with the groundwater 
compliance options set forth on pages 14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines dated May 
2015.  Subrecipient may submit reimbursement requests to GWMA only on a quarterly basis in 
January, April, July or September in each year for the term of this Agreement.  Payments to the 
Subrecipient shall be subject to the retention requirements set forth in Section D.37) of Exhibit D 

Page 4 of 12 
 



of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA shall not make the last reimbursement payment to 
Subrecipient until Subrecipient has shown it has completed the Sub-Project as set forth in 
Section 1.1 of this Agreement.  To the extent the Funds actually have been received from 
LACFCD, GWMA shall pay Subrecipient for all expenses stated on the invoice, which are 
approved by GWMA pursuant to this Agreement no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt 
of payment from LACFCD provided the reports are also timely submitted and approved. 

4. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.

4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete
the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods 
established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time periods have 
been approved in writing by GWMA.   

4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be 
terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with 
Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been completed, (ii) all 
audits and reports have been submitted by Subrecipient to GWMA pursuant to the Grant 
Agreement and the MOU and (iii) LACFCD has released final disbursement to GWMA and 
Subrecipient has received final disbursement of the Funds from GWMA pursuant to this 
Agreement; or by _________________, whichever event occurs first.  In the event that the 
________________________ deadline is extended pursuant to any agreement between DWR 
and GWMA, the new deadline shall take the place of “____________________” in the 
preceding sentence. 

4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that 
Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any accounts 
receivable attributable to the use of the Funds that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to 
others for the Sub-Project. 

5. COORDINATION OF WORK

5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient
shall be the City Manager of the City of _________ or such person as may be designated by the 
City Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer any decisions that must be made by Subrecipient to 
the Subrecipient Representative.  Any approval by Subrecipient required under this Agreement 
shall mean the approval of the Subrecipient Representative, unless the Subrecipient 
Representative informs GWMA that the decision must be made by the _________ (Board of 
Directors or City Council). 

5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive 
Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be 
Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept informed of the 
progress of the performance of the Sub-Project and Subrecipient shall refer any decisions that 
must be made by GWMA to the GWMA Representative.  Any approval by GWMA required 

Page 5 of 12 



under this Agreement shall mean the approval of the GWMA Representative, unless the GWMA 
Representative informs Subrecipient that the decision must be made by the Board of Directors. 

5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to 
GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly 
independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation or 
liability on behalf of GWMA or on behalf of any GWMA member not named as a subrecipient 
under this Agreement.  Neither GWMA nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct 
of Subrecipient or any of Subrecipient’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement.  
Subrecipient shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding the Subrecipient 
and Subrecipient’s employees.  Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold GWMA and all GWMA 
members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement harmless from any failure of 
Subrecipient to comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

6. MANDATORY LIABILITY COVERAGE 

6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in 
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in 
the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage. 

6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Subrecipient shall file with GWMA upon the 
execution of this Agreement, a memorandum of coverage issued by the California Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority that shall provide that no cancellation, major change in coverage, expiration, 
or nonrenewal will be made during the term of this Agreement, without thirty (30) calendar days’ 
written notice to GWMA prior to the effective date of such cancellation, or change in coverage. 

6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide 
(i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, 
employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (ii) that the 
coverage shall operate as primary coverage. 

6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor 
retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage with a $2 million 
aggregate and Automobile Liability of $1 million per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage at least as comprehensive as required under Sections 6.1-6.3 of this Agreement and shall 
require GWMA and its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers to be named as additional 
named insured on such coverage.  Subrecipient shall also require each consultant and contractor 
to obtain workers’ compensation coverage at not less than the minimum required under 
California law. 

7. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for 
at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later. 

Page 6 of 12 
 



7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the 
Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to 
GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Consultant shall 
prepare and submit regional reports to DWR and LACFCD to fulfill the GWMA’s reporting 
obligations under the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

 

8. ENFORCEMENT OF CONTRACT 

8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to 
validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dispute, claim or matter 
arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be instituted in the Superior Court of Los 
Angeles, State of California, the United States District, or any other appropriate court in Los 
Angeles County, and Subrecipient covenants and agrees to submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
such court in the event of such action. 

8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice 
from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving 
thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for all 
costs incurred prior to the termination date in accordance with the Grant Agreement and the 
MOU only to the extent that LACFCD provides those reimbursement funds to GWMA. 

8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this 
Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies 
expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are 
cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the 
same default, or any other default by the other parties. 

8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take 
legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for 
any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or 
injunctive relief, or to obtain any other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. 

8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend 
or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, 
whether legal or equitable, shall be entitled to actual attorneys’ fees.  Attorneys’ fees shall 
include attorneys’ fees on any appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorneys’ fees shall be 
entitled to all other costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all 
other costs incurred in such litigation. 

8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without GWMA’s prior written consent. 

Page 7 of 12 
 



9. INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any 
member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible 
for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to be done by 
Subrecipient, its officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors under this 
Agreement.  Subrecipient shall fully indemnify, defend and hold GWMA harmless from and 
against any liability and expenses, including defense costs, any costs or liability on account of 
bodily injury, death or personal injury of any person or for damage to or loss of risk of property, 
any environmental obligation, any legal fees, and any claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever arising out of this Agreement, including: (i) misuse of the Funds by Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors; (ii) default or breach of 
Subrecipient’s obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any act or omission of Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance and 
implementation of the Sub-Project under this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 9.1 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall 
be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) 
the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during Subrecipient’s and 
GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during regular business hours; or (ii) 
on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, 
designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 10.1.  All notices shall be delivered 
the parties at the following addresses: 

To GWMA:   Attn: Grace J. Kast, Executive Officer 
    Gateway Regional Water Management Authority 
    16401 Paramount Boulevard 
    Paramount, California 90723 

      Facsimile: 562-634-8216 

To Subrecipient:  Attn: __________________, City Manager 
    City of _________ 
    [Street Address] 
    _________, California [Zip Code] 
    Facsimile: [insert number] 

10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of 
reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the 
rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement. 

10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” 
“will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) 
“includes” or “including” are not limiting. 

Page 8 of 12 
 



10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason 
of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise 
apply. 

10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements 
between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes 
and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and understandings, if 
any, between the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended at any time by the mutual consent of the parties by an instrument in writing. 

10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (iii) by so executing 
this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) 
entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other agreement to which said 
party is bound. 

10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express 
provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall prevail, except that all state grant fund requirements contained in Exhibit A 
shall prevail over the provisions of this Agreement. 

10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and continue 
in full force and effect. 

Page 9 of 12 
 



DRAFT 07/14/2016 AMR Subrecipient Agreement 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Joint Powers 
Authority, 
a California Joint Powers Authority 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Subrecipient 

City of _________, 
a California municipal corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

-10- 
12664-0003\1943703v3.doc 



DRAFT 07/14/2016 AMR Subrecipient Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 
GRANT AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN DWR AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

-11- 
12664-0003\1943703v3.doc 



EXHIBIT B 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN GWMA AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

Page 12 of 12 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Lakewood Subrecipient Agreement 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD AND THE LOS ANGELES 

GATEWAY REGION INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

This Subrecipient Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ____________ ___, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) and is between the City of Lakewood, a California municipal corporation 
(“Subrecipient”) and the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Joint Powers Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority (“GWMA”). 

RECITALS 

A. GWMA is a member of the Greater Los Angeles County Region (“Region”) 
Integrated Regional Water Management (“IRWM”) Group.  As a part of the Region’s IRWM 
Plan, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (“LACFCD”) has entered into that certain 
Grant Agreement dated ____________ ___, 2016 (“Grant Agreement”) with the Department of 
Water Resources of the State of California (“DWR”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, for project grant funding as described in the 
Region’s IRWM Plan.   

B. For the Region’s IRWM projects funded under the Grant Agreement, the 
LACFCD has been designated as the regional entity to apply for grant funds on behalf of all 
proposed projects, including the Subrecipient’s Sub-Project, for the Region through the IRWM 
process;  

C. GWMA has entered into that certain Memorandum of Understanding, dated 
____________ ___, 2016 (“MOU”) with LACFCD, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, by which GWMA will serve as the Local 
Project Sponsor and will receive a grant for the Gateway Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan (“the Project”), for which One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) is earmarked 
specifically to assist the City of Lakewood (“Subrecipient”) with the Paramount Boulevard Turf 
Replacement Project that will conserve water by replacing turf in the City of Lakewood (“Sub-
Project”). 

D. The Parties desire for GWMA to process grant reimbursement requests on behalf 
of the Subrecipient, as outlined in this Agreement. 

Now, therefore, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS

1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  As part of the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall
replace turf located on approximately 100,000 square feet of median islands along Paramount 
Boulevard from Del Amo Boulevard to Carson Street.  The Sub-Project includes replacing turf 
with water efficient and drought tolerant landscaping, installing a water efficient irrigation 
system, and installing biofiltration swales along several roadway medians.  The Sub-Project will 
be implemented in accordance with the Work Plan, Budget and Schedule set forth in Exhibits A, 
B and C, respectively, of the Grant Agreement, consistent with the Subrecipient’s public project 

-1- 
12664-0003\1947369v7.doc 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



bidding procedures and requirements.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf for purposes of 
management, oversight, compliance, operations and maintenance of the Sub-Project in 
accordance with the Grant Agreement.   

1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be 
Two Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Eighteen Dollars ($2,027,418.00).  
Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of One Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred 
Eighteen Dollars ($1,027,418.00) of its own funds, which constitutes at least fifty-one percent 
(51%) of the cost of the Sub-Project, to the Sub-Project, in accordance with the Grant 
Agreement.  Subrecipient shall document and submit documentation reflecting the 
Subrecipient’s internal costs and total Sub-Project costs to GWMA to demonstrate the 
Subrecipient’s required cost share obligations under this Agreement prior to GWMA 
reimbursing the Subrecipient.   

1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) 
solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Funds shall be 
used solely to reimburse the actual expenses incurred by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-
Project.  Subrecipient shall apply the Funds only to eligible Sub-Project costs as specified in 
Section 10 of the Grant Agreement and in accordance with applicable provisions of the law and 
Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement. 

1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on 
GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant 
Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges it is familiar with and agrees that it shall comply with all requirements under the 
MOU and the Grant Agreement. 

1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations 
pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that 
Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreement, 
regarding adopting and enforcing a labor compliance program.  Subrecipient acknowledges that 
GWMA does not have a labor compliance program and that GWMA will not fulfill any 
responsibilities under Section 17 of the Grant Agreement on behalf of the subrecipient.   

1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of 
sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of 
audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR. 

1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed 
under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules 
and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency having jurisdiction at the time of 
performance. 

1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient 
has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under 
the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Grant 

Page 2 of 12 



Agreement, Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for complying with any DWR or LACFCD 
demands, determinations, fines or other such actions or penalties initiated by DWR because of 
the default.  Furthermore, if Subrecipient defaults under the MOU or the Grant Agreement or 
causes GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in 
Section 13 of the Grant Agreement, GWMA may terminate this Agreement, and Subrecipient 
shall immediately forfeit its right to the Funds, shall not be entitled to reimbursement for any of 
Subrecipient’s costs for its Sub-Project, and shall repay any Funds to DWR with interest, which 
shall be equal to the State of California general obligation bond interest rate in effect at the time 
of the default, pursuant to Section 13 of the Grant Agreement.  No non-defaulting Subrecipient, 
non-participating GWMA member, or GWMA as a whole shall be in any way responsible for 
satisfying any DWR or LACFCD demands made in response to a default of the Grant Agreement 
or the MOU by Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient is found to have defaulted under the Grant 
Agreement or the MOU, it shall remain obligated under this Agreement and remain responsible 
to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations under Section 1.1. 

1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be 
reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) 
which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, for grant administrative 
costs, management, and project oversight efforts with respect to the IRWM and Grant 
Agreement and MOU requirements, which has been subtracted from the Subrecipient’s requested 
grant amount, as reflected in Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient thereby agrees that 
it will be reimbursed Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($975,000.00) by GWMA 
under this Agreement, consistent with and subject to the provisions of Section 3.1 of this 
Agreement.   

2. GWMA OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and 
respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant 
administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant 
reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which 
will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds from 
LACFCD related to the invoices submitted, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient consistent with 
Section 3.3 of this Agreement.   

3. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in 
this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Nine Hundred 
Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($975,000.00), which shall constitute GWMA’s full obligation 
to Subrecipient, unless GWMA receives additional funds from DWR for the completion of the 
Sub-Project.  If the funds are insufficient to complete the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall secure 
and provide such additional non-Grant funds necessary to complete the Sub-Project.  
Reimbursement, if any, by GWMA is conditioned upon receipt of such funds by GWMA from 
DWR and obtaining all required approvals from DWR, including environmental clearances.  If 

Page 3 of 12 
 



DWR funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, GWMA shall not have any 
obligation to reimburse Subrecipient through any other source of GWMA funds. 

3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member 
be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the 
Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds allocated to Subrecipient 
are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way, neither GWMA nor the GWMA 
members that are not named as the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall be held liable for any 
costs.  Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for any costs associated with the Sub-Project in 
the event that the Funds are not forthcoming for any reason, or in the event that the Funds 
allocated to Subrecipient are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way. 

3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon 
Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project 
costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Agreement, and 
supporting documentation; (ii) deliverables, as specified in Section 18 of and Exhibit A to the 
Grant Agreement; (iii) the plans, specifications, environmental documentation and monitoring 
plan described in Section 8.e) of the Grant Agreement; (iv) the audited financial statements 
required under Section 8.a) of the Grant Agreement; (v) all applicable reports required under 
Section 18 of the Grant Agreement; and (vi) evidence of compliance with the groundwater 
compliance options set forth on pages 14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines dated May 
2015.  Subrecipient may submit reimbursement requests to GWMA only on a quarterly basis in 
January, April, July or September in each year for the term of this Agreement.  Payments to the 
Subrecipient shall be subject to the retention requirements set forth in Section D.37) of Exhibit D 
of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA shall not make the last reimbursement payment to 
Subrecipient until Subrecipient has shown it has completed the Sub-Project as set forth in 
Section 1.1 of this Agreement.  To the extent the Funds actually have been received from 
LACFCD, GWMA shall pay Subrecipient for all expenses stated on the invoice, which are 
approved by GWMA pursuant to this Agreement no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt 
of payment from LACFCD provided the reports are also timely submitted and approved. 

4. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete 
the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods 
established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time periods have 
been approved in writing by GWMA.   

4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be 
terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with 
Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been completed, (ii) all 
audits and reports have been submitted by Subrecipient to GWMA pursuant to the Grant 
Agreement and the MOU and (iii) LACFCD has released final disbursement to GWMA and 
Subrecipient has received final disbursement of the Funds from GWMA pursuant to this 
Agreement; or by _________________, whichever event occurs first.  In the event that the 

Page 4 of 12 
 



________________________ deadline is extended pursuant to any agreement between DWR 
and GWMA, the new deadline shall take the place of “____________________” in the 
preceding sentence. 

4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that 
Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any accounts 
receivable attributable to the use of the Funds that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to 
others for the Sub-Project. 

5. COORDINATION OF WORK 

5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient 
shall be the City Manager of the City of Lakewood or such person as may be designated by the 
City Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer any decisions that must be made by Subrecipient to 
the Subrecipient Representative.  Any approval by Subrecipient required under this Agreement 
shall mean the approval of the Subrecipient Representative, unless the Subrecipient 
Representative informs GWMA that the decision must be made by the Lakewood City Council. 

5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive 
Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be 
Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept informed of the 
progress of the performance of the Sub-Project and Subrecipient shall refer any decisions that 
must be made by GWMA to the GWMA Representative.  Any approval by GWMA required 
under this Agreement shall mean the approval of the GWMA Representative, unless the GWMA 
Representative informs Subrecipient that the decision must be made by the Board of Directors. 

5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to 
GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly 
independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation or 
liability on behalf of GWMA or on behalf of any GWMA member not named as a subrecipient 
under this Agreement.  Neither GWMA nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct 
of Subrecipient or any of Subrecipient’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement.  
Subrecipient shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding the Subrecipient 
and Subrecipient’s employees.  Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold GWMA and all GWMA 
members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement harmless from any failure of 
Subrecipient to comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

6. MANDATORY LIABILITY COVERAGE 

6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in 
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in 
the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage. 

6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Subrecipient shall file with GWMA upon the 
execution of this Agreement, a memorandum of coverage issued by the California Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority that shall provide that no cancellation, major change in coverage, expiration, 

Page 5 of 12 
 



or nonrenewal will be made during the term of this Agreement, without thirty (30) calendar days’ 
written notice to GWMA prior to the effective date of such cancellation, or change in coverage. 

6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide 
(i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, 
employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (ii) that the 
coverage shall operate as primary coverage. 

6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor 
retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage with a $2 million 
aggregate and Automobile Liability of $1 million per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage at least as comprehensive as required under Sections 6.1-6.3 of this Agreement and shall 
require GWMA and its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers to be named as additional 
named insured on such coverage.  Subrecipient shall also require each consultant and contractor 
to obtain workers’ compensation coverage at not less than the minimum required under 
California law. 

7. RECORDS AND REPORTS

7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for
at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later. 

7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the 
Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to 
GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Consultant shall 
prepare and submit regional reports to DWR and LACFCD to fulfill the GWMA’s reporting 
obligations under the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

8. ENFORCEMENT OF CONTRACT

8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to
validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dispute, claim or matter 
arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be instituted in the Superior Court of Los 
Angeles, State of California, the United States District, or any other appropriate court in Los 
Angeles County, and Subrecipient covenants and agrees to submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
such court in the event of such action. 

8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice 
from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving 
thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for all 
costs incurred prior to the termination date in accordance with the Grant Agreement and the 
MOU only to the extent that LACFCD provides those reimbursement funds to GWMA. 

8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this 
Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

Page 6 of 12 



8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies 
expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are 
cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the 
same default, or any other default by the other parties. 

8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take 
legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for 
any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or 
injunctive relief, or to obtain any other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. 

8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend 
or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, 
whether legal or equitable, shall be entitled to actual attorneys’ fees.  Attorneys’ fees shall 
include attorneys’ fees on any appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorneys’ fees shall be 
entitled to all other costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all 
other costs incurred in such litigation. 

8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without GWMA’s prior written consent. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any 
member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible 
for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to be done by 
Subrecipient, its officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors under this 
Agreement.  Subrecipient shall fully indemnify, defend and hold GWMA harmless from and 
against any liability and expenses, including defense costs, any costs or liability on account of 
bodily injury, death or personal injury of any person or for damage to or loss of risk of property, 
any environmental obligation, any legal fees, and any claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever arising out of this Agreement, including: (i) misuse of the Funds by Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors; (ii) default or breach of 
Subrecipient’s obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any act or omission of Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance and 
implementation of the Sub-Project under this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 9.1 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall 
be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) 
the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during Subrecipient’s and 
GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during regular business hours; or (ii) 
on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, 

Page 7 of 12 
 



designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 10.1.  All notices shall be delivered 
the parties at the following addresses: 

To GWMA:   Attn: Grace J. Kast, Executive Officer 
    Gateway Regional Water Management Authority 
    16401 Paramount Boulevard 
    Paramount, California 90723 

      Facsimile: 562-634-8216 

To Subrecipient:  Attn: Howard L. Chambers, City Manager 
    City of Lakewood 

5050 Clark Avenue 
Lakewood, California 90712 

      Facsimile: 562.866.9771 
 

10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of 
reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the 
rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement. 

10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” 
“will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) 
“includes” or “including” are not limiting. 

10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason 
of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise 
apply. 

10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements 
between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes 
and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and understandings, if 
any, between the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended at any time by the mutual consent of the parties by an instrument in writing. 

10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (iii) by so executing 
this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) 
entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other agreement to which said 
party is bound. 

10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express 
provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall prevail, except that all state grant fund requirements contained in Exhibit A 
shall prevail over the provisions of this Agreement. 

Page 8 of 12 
 



10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and continue 
in full force and effect. 

Page 9 of 12 
 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Lakewood Subrecipient Agreement 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Joint Powers 
Authority, 
a California Joint Powers Authority 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Subrecipient 

City of Lakewood 
a California municipal corporation 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

-10- 
12664-0003\1947369v7.doc 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Lakewood Subrecipient Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 
GRANT AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN DWR AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

-11- 
12664-0003\1947369v7.doc 



EXHIBIT B 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN GWMA AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

Page 12 of 12 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Recycled Water Subrecipient Agreement 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AND THE LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

This Subrecipient Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ____________ ___, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) and is between the Central Basin Municipal Water District, a public agency 
(“Subrecipient”) and the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Joint Powers Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority (“GWMA”). 

RECITALS 

A. GWMA is a member of the Greater Los Angeles County Region (“Region”) 
Integrated Regional Water Management (“IRWM”) Group.  As a part of the Region’s IRWM 
Plan, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (“LACFCD”) has entered into that certain 
Grant Agreement dated ____________ ___, 2016 (“Grant Agreement”) with the Department of 
Water Resources of the State of California (“DWR”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, for project grant funding relating to water 
conversation and water efficiency projects as described in the Region’s IRWM Plan.   

B. For the Region’s IRWM projects funded under the Grant Agreement, the 
LACFCD has been designated as the regional entity to apply for grant funds on behalf of all 
proposed projects, including the Subrecipient’s Sub-Project, for the Region through the IRWM 
process.  

C. GWMA has entered into that certain Memorandum of Understanding, dated 
____________ ___, 2016 (“MOU”) with LACFCD, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, by which GWMA will serve as the Local 
Project Sponsor and will receive a grant for the Gateway Integrated Water Management Plan 
(“the Project”) for which Nine Hundred Twenty Thousand Eight Hundred Eleven Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($920,811.00) is earmarked specifically to assist the Subrecipient with the Gateway 
Cities Regional Recycled Water System Expansion Project (“Sub-Project”).  

D. The Parties desire for GWMA to process grant reimbursement requests on behalf 
of the Subrecipient, as outlined in this Agreement. 

Now, therefore, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS

1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  The Sub-Project is comprised of preparing
planning, design, and environmental documents for recycled water pipelines that will extend the 
Central Basin Municipal Water District recycled water system.  The Sub-Project includes a 
California Environmental Quality Act analysis and the development of plans, specifications, and 
cost estimates for the construction of the recycled water pipelines in accordance with the Work 
Plan, Budget and Schedule set forth in Exhibits A, B and C, respectively, of the Grant 
Agreement, consistent with any applicable Subrecipient bidding procedures and requirements.  

-1- 
12664-0003\1969263v6.doc 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



The Sub-Project includes completing a Feasibility Study/Basis of Design Report, preparing a 
notice of preparation, an initial study and a mitigated negative declaration, submitting the 
necessary permit applications to the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Heath and Los 
Angeles County Sanitation District, and designing the recycled water pipeline project.  
Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf for purposes of management, oversight, compliance, 
operations and maintenance of the Sub-Project in accordance with the Grant Agreement.  
Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for the hiring and managing any of the consultants and 
engineers that are hired to implement the Sub-Project. 

1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be 
One Million Forty-Six Thousand One Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Zero Cents 
($1,046,143.00).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand 
Three Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars and Zero Cents ($125,333.00) of its own funds, which 
constitutes at least twelve percent (12%) of the cost of the Sub-Project, to the Sub-Project, in 
accordance with the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall document and submit documentation 
reflecting the Subrecipient’s internal costs and total Sub-Project costs to GWMA to demonstrate 
the Subrecipient’s required cost share obligations under this Agreement prior to GWMA 
reimbursing the Subrecipient.   

1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) 
solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Funds shall be 
used solely to reimburse the actual expenses incurred by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-
Project.  Subrecipient shall apply the Funds only to eligible Sub-Project costs as specified in 
Section 10 of the Grant Agreement and in accordance with applicable provisions of the law and 
Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement. 

1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on 
GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant 
Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges it is familiar with and agrees that it shall comply with all requirements under the 
MOU and the Grant Agreement.  

1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  If the Sub-Project requires a labor compliance 
program, then, in addition to and as part of all its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4 of this 
Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that Subrecipient is solely responsible for 
complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreement, regarding adopting and enforcing a labor 
compliance program.  Subrecipient acknowledges that GWMA does not have a labor compliance 
program and that GWMA will not fulfill any responsibilities under Section 17 of the Grant 
Agreement on behalf of the Subrecipient.   

1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of 
sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of 
audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR. 

1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed 
under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules 

Page 2 of 12 



and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency having jurisdiction at the time of 
performance. 

1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient 
has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under 
the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Grant 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for complying with any DWR or LACFCD 
demands, determinations, fines or other such actions or penalties initiated by DWR because of 
the default.  Furthermore, if Subrecipient defaults under the MOU or the Grant Agreement or 
causes GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in 
Section 13 of the Grant Agreement, GWMA may terminate this Agreement, and Subrecipient 
shall immediately forfeit its right to the Funds, shall not be entitled to reimbursement for any of 
Subrecipient’s costs for its Sub-Project, and shall repay any Funds to DWR with interest, which 
shall be equal to the State of California general obligation bond interest rate in effect at the time 
of the default, pursuant to Section 13 of the Grant Agreement.  No non-defaulting Subrecipient, 
non-participating GWMA member, or GWMA as a whole shall be in any way responsible for 
satisfying any DWR or LACFCD demands made in response to a default of the Grant Agreement 
or the MOU by Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient is found to have defaulted under the Grant 
Agreement or the MOU, it shall remain obligated under this Agreement and remain responsible 
to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations under Section 1.1. 

1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be 
reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Three Thousand Twenty Dollars and 
Twenty-Seven Cents ($23,020.27), which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s requested 
grant amount, for grant administrative costs, management, and project oversight efforts with 
respect to the IRWM and Grant Agreement and MOU requirements, which has been subtracted 
from the Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, as reflected in Exhibit B of the Grant 
Agreement.  Subrecipient thereby agrees that it will be reimbursed Eight Hundred Ninety-Seven 
Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars and Seventy-Three Cents ($897,790.73) by GWMA 
under this Agreement, consistent with and subject to the provisions of Section 3.1 of this 
Agreement.   

2. GWMA OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and 
respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant 
administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant 
reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which 
will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds from 
LACFCD related to the invoices submitted, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient consistent with 
Section 3.3 of this Agreement.   

2.3 Hiring of Project Manager Consultant.  On behalf of Subrecipient, GWMA shall 
hire a project manager (“Consultant”) for managing the project deliverable requirements set forth 
in the Grant Agreement and the MOU, relating to reporting and compliance.  Said Consultant 

Page 3 of 12 
 



shall collect all information required by DWR under the Grant Agreement from the Subrecipient, 
coordinate and submit project deliverables on behalf of the Subrecipient to LACFCD on or 
before deadlines pursuant to the Grant Agreement.    

3. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in 
this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Eight Hundred 
Ninety-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars and Seventy-Three Cents ($897,790.73), 
which shall constitute GWMA’s full obligation to Subrecipient, unless GWMA receives 
additional funds from DWR for the completion of the Sub-Project.  If the funds are insufficient 
to complete the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall secure and provide such additional non-Grant 
funds necessary to complete the Sub-Project.  Reimbursement, if any, by GWMA is conditioned 
upon receipt of such funds by GWMA from DWR and obtaining all required approvals from 
DWR, including environmental clearances.  If DWR funds are not forthcoming from DWR for 
any reason, GWMA shall not have any obligation to reimburse Subrecipient through any other 
source of GWMA funds. 

3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member 
be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the 
Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds allocated to Subrecipient 
are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way, neither GWMA nor the GWMA 
members that are not named as the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall be held liable for any 
costs.  Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for any costs associated with the Sub-Project in 
the event that the Funds are not forthcoming for any reason, or in the event that the Funds 
allocated to Subrecipient are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way. 

3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon 
Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project 
costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Agreement, and 
supporting documentation; (ii) deliverables, as specified in Section 18 of and Exhibit A to the 
Grant Agreement; (iii) the plans, specifications, environmental documentation and monitoring 
plan described in Section 8.e) of the Grant Agreement; (iv) the audited financial statements 
required under Section 8.a) of the Grant Agreement; (v) all applicable reports required under 
Section 18 of the Grant Agreement; and (vi) evidence of compliance with the groundwater 
compliance options set forth on pages 14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines dated May 
2015.  Subrecipient may submit reimbursement requests to GWMA only on a quarterly basis in 
January, April, July or September in each year for the term of this Agreement.  Payments to the 
Subrecipient shall be subject to the retention requirements set forth in Section D.37) of Exhibit D 
of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA shall not make the last reimbursement payment to 
Subrecipient until Subrecipient has shown it has completed the Sub-Project as set forth in 
Section 1.1 of this Agreement.  To the extent the Funds actually have been received from 
LACFCD, GWMA shall pay Subrecipient for all expenses stated on the invoice, which are 
approved by GWMA pursuant to this Agreement no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt 
of payment from LACFCD provided the reports are also timely submitted and approved. 

4. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

Page 4 of 12 
 



4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete 
the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods 
established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time periods have 
been approved in writing by GWMA.   

4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be 
terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with 
Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been completed, (ii) all 
audits and reports have been submitted by Subrecipient to GWMA pursuant to the Grant 
Agreement and the MOU and (iii) LACFCD has released final disbursement to GWMA and 
Subrecipient has received final disbursement of the Funds from GWMA pursuant to this 
Agreement; or by _________________, whichever event occurs first.  In the event that the 
________________________ deadline is extended pursuant to any agreement between DWR 
and GWMA, the new deadline shall take the place of “____________________” in the 
preceding sentence. 

4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that 
Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any accounts 
receivable attributable to the use of the Funds that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to 
others for the Sub-Project. 

5. COORDINATION OF WORK

5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient
shall be the Chief Engineer of the Central Basin Municipal Water District or such person as may 
be designated by the General Manager of the Central Basin Municipal Water District in writing. 
GWMA shall refer any decisions that must be made by Subrecipient to the Subrecipient 
Representative.  Any approval by Subrecipient required under this Agreement shall mean the 
approval of the Subrecipient Representative, unless the Subrecipient Representative informs 
GWMA that the decision must be made by the Central Basin Municipal Water District Board of 
Directors. 

5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive 
Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be 
Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept informed of the 
progress of the performance of the Sub-Project and Subrecipient shall refer any decisions that 
must be made by GWMA to the GWMA Representative.  Any approval by GWMA required 
under this Agreement shall mean the approval of the GWMA Representative, unless the GWMA 
Representative informs Subrecipient that the decision must be made by the Board of Directors. 

5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to 
GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly 
independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation or 
liability on behalf of GWMA or on behalf of any GWMA member not named as a subrecipient 

Page 5 of 12 



under this Agreement.  Neither GWMA nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct 
of Subrecipient or any of Subrecipient’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement.  
Subrecipient shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding the Subrecipient 
and Subrecipient’s employees.  Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold GWMA and all GWMA 
members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement harmless from any failure of 
Subrecipient to comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

6. MANDATORY LIABILITY COVERAGE 

6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in 
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in 
the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage. 

6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, Subrecipient 
shall file with GWMA commercial insurance coverage issued by Allied World Assurance 
Company that shall provide notice of cancellation shall be provided to GWMA in accordance 
with the terms of the policy.   

6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide 
(i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, 
employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (ii) that the 
coverage shall operate as primary coverage. 

6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor 
retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage with a $2 million 
aggregate and Automobile Liability of $1 million per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage at least as comprehensive as required under Sections 6.1-6.3 of this Agreement and shall 
require GWMA and its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers to be named as additional 
named insured on such coverage.  Subrecipient shall also require each consultant and contractor 
to obtain workers’ compensation coverage at not less than the minimum required under 
California law. 

7. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for 
at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later. 

7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the 
Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to 
GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Consultant shall 
prepare and submit regional reports to DWR and LACFCD to fulfill the GWMA’s reporting 
obligations under the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

8. ENFORCEMENT OF CONTRACT 

Page 6 of 12 
 



8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to 
validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dispute, claim or matter 
arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be instituted in the Superior Court of Los 
Angeles, State of California, the United States District, or any other appropriate court in Los 
Angeles County, and Subrecipient covenants and agrees to submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
such court in the event of such action. 

8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice 
from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving 
thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for all 
costs incurred prior to the termination date in accordance with the Grant Agreement and the 
MOU only to the extent that LACFCD provides those reimbursement funds to GWMA. 

8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this 
Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies 
expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are 
cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the 
same default, or any other default by the other parties. 

8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take 
legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for 
any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or 
injunctive relief, or to obtain any other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. 

8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend 
or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, 
whether legal or equitable, shall be entitled to actual attorneys’ fees.  Attorneys’ fees shall 
include attorneys’ fees on any appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorneys’ fees shall be 
entitled to all other costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all 
other costs incurred in such litigation. 

8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without GWMA’s prior written consent. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any 
member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible 
for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to be done by 
Subrecipient, its officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors under this 
Agreement.  Subrecipient shall fully indemnify, defend and hold GWMA harmless from and 
against any liability and expenses, including defense costs, any costs or liability on account of 
bodily injury, death or personal injury of any person or for damage to or loss of risk of property, 

Page 7 of 12 
 



any environmental obligation, any legal fees, and any claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever arising out of this Agreement, including: (i) misuse of the Funds by Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors; (ii) default or breach of 
Subrecipient’s obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any act or omission of Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance and 
implementation of the Sub-Project under this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 9.1 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall 
be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) 
the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during Subrecipient’s and 
GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during regular business hours; or (ii) 
on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, 
designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 10.1.  All notices shall be delivered 
the parties at the following addresses: 

To GWMA:   Attn: Grace J. Kast, Executive Officer 
    Gateway Regional Water Management Authority 
    16401 Paramount Boulevard 
    Paramount, California 90723 

      Facsimile: 562-634-8216 

To Subrecipient:  Attn: Lonnie Curtis, Chief Engineer 
    Central Basin Municipal Water District  

      6252 Telegraph Road 
Commerce, California 90040-2512 
Facsimile: 323-201-5550 
 

10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of 
reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the 
rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement. 

10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” 
“will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) 
“includes” or “including” are not limiting. 

10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason 
of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise 
apply. 

10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements 
between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes 
and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and understandings, if 

Page 8 of 12 
 



any, between the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended at any time by the mutual consent of the parties by an instrument in writing. 

10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (iii) by so executing 
this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) 
entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other agreement to which said 
party is bound. 

10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express 
provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall prevail, except that all state grant fund requirements contained in Exhibit A 
shall prevail over the provisions of this Agreement. 

10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and continue 
in full force and effect. 

Page 9 of 12 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Recycled Water Subrecipient Agreement 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Joint Powers 
Authority, 
a California Joint Powers Authority 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Subrecipient 

Central Basin Municipal Water District, 
a public agency 

By: 
Name: Kevin P. Hunt, P.E. 
Title: General Manager 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name:  Alfred Smith  
Title: Nossaman, LLP, District Counsel 

-10- 
12664-0003\1969263v6.doc 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Recycled Water Subrecipient Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 
GRANT AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN DWR AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

-11- 
12664-0003\1969263v6.doc 



EXHIBIT B 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN GWMA AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

Page 12 of 12 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Central Basin Subrecipient Agreement 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AND THE LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

This Subrecipient Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ____________ ___, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) and is between the Central Basin Municipal Water District, a public agency 
(“Subrecipient”) and the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management 
Joint Powers Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority (“GWMA”). 

RECITALS 

A. GWMA is a member of the Greater Los Angeles County Region (“Region”) 
Integrated Regional Water Management (“IRWM”) Group.  As a part of the Region’s IRWM 
Plan, the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (“LACFCD”) has entered into that certain 
Grant Agreement dated ____________ ___, 2016 (“Grant Agreement”) with the Department of 
Water Resources of the State of California (“DWR”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, for project grant funding as described in the 
Region’s IRWM Plan.   

B. For the Region’s IRWM projects funded under the Grant Agreement, the 
LACFCD has been designated as the regional entity to apply for grant funds on behalf of all 
proposed projects, including the Subrecipient’s Sub-Project, for the Region through the IRWM 
process;  

C. GWMA has entered into that certain Memorandum of Understanding, dated 
____________ ___, 2016 (“MOU”) with LACFCD, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, by which GWMA will serve as the Local 
Project Sponsor and will receive a grant for the Gateway Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan (“the Project”), for which Seven Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred 
and Two Dollars and Zero Cents ($745,902.00) is earmarked specifically to assist the Central 
Basin Municipal Water District (“Subrecipient”) with a water conservation audit and retrofit 
project (“Sub-Project”). 

D. The Parties desire for GWMA to process grant reimbursement requests on behalf 
of the Subrecipient, as outlined in this Agreement. 

Now, therefore, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. SUBRECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS

1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  As part of the sub-Project, Subrecipient shall: (1)
audit 57 public facilities throughout the Central Basin to determine sources of excessive water 
use, and (2) retrofit the sites (as necessary) based on audit results.  High efficiency devices to 
reduce indoor and outdoor water use including high efficiency toilets, zero water and ultra low 
water urinals, laminar flow restrictors, large rotary nozzles, rotating nozzles for spray heads, 
weather-based irrigation controllers, central computer irrigation controllers, and flow regulators 

-1- 
12664-0003\1976974v2.doc 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



will be installed as appropriate, and piping system upgrades and repairs will be constructed to 
improve water use efficiency and reduce water use.  The Sub-Project will be implemented in 
accordance with the Work Plan, Budget and Schedule set forth in Exhibits A, B and C, 
respectively, of the Grant Agreement, consistent with the Subrecipient’s public project bidding 
procedures and requirements.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf for purposes of 
management, oversight, compliance, operations and maintenance of the Sub-Project in 
accordance with the Grant Agreement.   

1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be 
One Million One Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars and Zero 
Cents ($1,159,433.00).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of Four Hundred Thirteen 
Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-One Dollars and Zero Cents ($413,513.00) of its own funds, 
which constitutes at least thirty-six percent (36%) of the cost of the Sub-Project, to the Sub-
Project, in accordance with the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall document and submit 
documentation reflecting the Subrecipient’s internal costs and total Sub-Project costs to GWMA 
to demonstrate the Subrecipient’s required cost share obligations under this Agreement prior to 
GWMA reimbursing the Subrecipient.   

1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) 
solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Funds shall be 
used solely to reimburse the actual expenses incurred by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-
Project.  Subrecipient shall apply the Funds only to eligible Sub-Project costs as specified in 
Section 10 of the Grant Agreement and in accordance with applicable provisions of the law and 
Exhibit B of the Grant Agreement. 

1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on 
GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant 
Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges it is familiar with and agrees that it shall comply with all requirements under the 
MOU and the Grant Agreement. 

1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations 
pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that 
Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreement, 
regarding adopting and enforcing a labor compliance program.  Subrecipient acknowledges that 
GWMA does not have a labor compliance program and that GWMA will not fulfill any 
responsibilities under Section 17 of the Grant Agreement on behalf of the subrecipient.   

1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of 
sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of 
audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR. 

1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed 
under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules 
and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency having jurisdiction at the time of 
performance. 

Page 2 of 12 



1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient 
has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under 
the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Grant 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for complying with any DWR or LACFCD 
demands, determinations, fines or other such actions or penalties initiated by DWR because of 
the default.  Furthermore, if Subrecipient defaults under the MOU or the Grant Agreement or 
causes GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in 
Section 13 of the Grant Agreement, GWMA may terminate this Agreement, and Subrecipient 
shall immediately forfeit its right to the Funds, shall not be entitled to reimbursement for any of 
Subrecipient’s costs for its Sub-Project, and shall repay any Funds to DWR with interest, which 
shall be equal to the State of California general obligation bond interest rate in effect at the time 
of the default, pursuant to Section 13 of the Grant Agreement.  No non-defaulting Subrecipient, 
non-participating GWMA member, or GWMA as a whole shall be in any way responsible for 
satisfying any DWR or LACFCD demands made in response to a default of the Grant Agreement 
or the MOU by Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient is found to have defaulted under the Grant 
Agreement or the MOU, it shall remain obligated under this Agreement and remain responsible 
to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, including those obligations under Section 1.1. 

1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be 
reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Eighteen Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Seven 
Dollars and Fifty-Five Cents ($18,647.55), which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s 
requested grant amount, for grant administrative costs, management, and project oversight efforts 
with respect to the IRWM and Grant Agreement and MOU requirements, which has been 
subtracted from the Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, as reflected in Exhibit B of the Grant 
Agreement.  Subrecipient thereby agrees that it will be reimbursed Seven Hundred Twenty-
Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty-Five Cents ($727,254.45) by 
GWMA under this Agreement, consistent with and subject to the provisions of Section 3.1 of 
this Agreement.   

2. GWMA OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and 
respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant 
administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant 
reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which 
will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds from 
LACFCD related to the invoices submitted, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient consistent with 
Section 3.3 of this Agreement.   

3. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 

3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in 
this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Seven Hundred 
Twenty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty-Five Cents ($727,254.45), 
which shall constitute GWMA’s full obligation to Subrecipient, unless GWMA receives 

Page 3 of 12 
 



additional funds from DWR for the completion of the Sub-Project.  If the funds are insufficient 
to complete the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall secure and provide such additional non-Grant 
funds necessary to complete the Sub-Project.  Reimbursement, if any, by GWMA is conditioned 
upon receipt of such funds by GWMA from DWR and obtaining all required approvals from 
DWR, including environmental clearances.  If DWR funds are not forthcoming from DWR for 
any reason, GWMA shall not have any obligation to reimburse Subrecipient through any other 
source of GWMA funds. 

3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member 
be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the 
Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds allocated to Subrecipient 
are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way, neither GWMA nor the GWMA 
members that are not named as the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall be held liable for any 
costs.  Subrecipient shall be solely responsible for any costs associated with the Sub-Project in 
the event that the Funds are not forthcoming for any reason, or in the event that the Funds 
allocated to Subrecipient are insufficient to cover costs for the Sub-Project in any way. 

3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon 
Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project 
costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Agreement, and 
supporting documentation; (ii) deliverables, as specified in Section 18 of and Exhibit A to the 
Grant Agreement; (iii) the plans, specifications, environmental documentation and monitoring 
plan described in Section 8.e) of the Grant Agreement; (iv) the audited financial statements 
required under Section 8.a) of the Grant Agreement; (v) all applicable reports required under 
Section 18 of the Grant Agreement; and (vi) evidence of compliance with the groundwater 
compliance options set forth on pages 14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines dated May 
2015.  Subrecipient may submit reimbursement requests to GWMA only on a quarterly basis in 
January, April, July or September in each year for the term of this Agreement.  Payments to the 
Subrecipient shall be subject to the retention requirements set forth in Section D.37) of Exhibit D 
of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA shall not make the last reimbursement payment to 
Subrecipient until Subrecipient has shown it has completed the Sub-Project as set forth in 
Section 1.1 of this Agreement.  To the extent the Funds actually have been received from 
LACFCD, GWMA shall pay Subrecipient for all expenses stated on the invoice, which are 
approved by GWMA pursuant to this Agreement no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt 
of payment from LACFCD provided the reports are also timely submitted and approved. 

4. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete 
the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods 
established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time periods have 
been approved in writing by GWMA.   

4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be 
terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with 

Page 4 of 12 
 



Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been completed, (ii) all 
audits and reports have been submitted by Subrecipient to GWMA pursuant to the Grant 
Agreement and the MOU and (iii) LACFCD has released final disbursement to GWMA and 
Subrecipient has received final disbursement of the Funds from GWMA pursuant to this 
Agreement; or by _________________, whichever event occurs first.  In the event that the 
________________________ deadline is extended pursuant to any agreement between DWR 
and GWMA, the new deadline shall take the place of “____________________” in the 
preceding sentence. 

4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this 
Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that 
Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any accounts 
receivable attributable to the use of the Funds that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to 
others for the Sub-Project. 

5. COORDINATION OF WORK

5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient 
shall be the Conservation Manager of the Central Basin Municipal Water District or such person 
as may be designated by the General Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer any decisions that 
must be made by Subrecipient to the Subrecipient Representative.  Any approval by Subrecipient 
required under this Agreement shall mean the approval of the Subrecipient Representative, 
unless the Subrecipient Representative informs GWMA that the decision must be made by the 
Central Basin Municipal Water District Board of Directors. 

5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be Executive Director, 
or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be 
Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept informed of the 
progress of the performance of the Sub-Project and Subrecipient shall refer any decisions that 
must be made by GWMA to the GWMA Representative.  Any approval by GWMA required 
under this Agreement shall mean the approval of the GWMA Representative, unless the GWMA 
Representative informs Subrecipient that the decision must be made by the Board of Directors. 

5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to 
GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly 
independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation or 
liability on behalf of GWMA or on behalf of any GWMA member not named as a subrecipient 
under this Agreement.  Neither GWMA nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct 
of Subrecipient or any of Subrecipient’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement. 
Subrecipient shall fully comply with the workers’ compensation laws regarding the Subrecipient 
and Subrecipient’s employees.  Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold GWMA and all GWMA 
members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement harmless from any failure of 
Subrecipient to comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

6. MANDATORY LIABILITY COVERAGE

Page 5 of 12 



6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in 
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in 
the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage. 

6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, Subrecipient 
shall file with GWMA commercial insurance coverage issued by Allied World Assurance 
Company that shall provide notice of cancellation shall be provided to GWMA in accordance 
with the terms of the policy.   

6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide 
(i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, 
employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (ii) that the 
coverage shall operate as primary coverage. 

6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor 
retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage with a $2 million 
aggregate and Automobile Liability of $1 million per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage at least as comprehensive as required under Sections 6.1-6.3 of this Agreement and shall 
require GWMA and its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers to be named as additional 
named insured on such coverage.  Subrecipient shall also require each consultant and contractor 
to obtain workers’ compensation coverage at not less than the minimum required under 
California law. 

7. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for 
at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later. 

7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the 
Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to 
GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Consultant shall 
prepare and submit regional reports to DWR and LACFCD to fulfill the GWMA’s reporting 
obligations under the Grant Agreement and the MOU. 

8. ENFORCEMENT OF CONTRACT 

8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to 
validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dispute, claim or matter 
arising out of or in relation to this Agreement shall be instituted in the Superior Court of Los 
Angeles, State of California, the United States District, or any other appropriate court in Los 
Angeles County, and Subrecipient covenants and agrees to submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
such court in the event of such action. 

8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice 
from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving 

Page 6 of 12 
 



thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for all 
costs incurred prior to the termination date in accordance with the Grant Agreement and the 
MOU only to the extent that LACFCD provides those reimbursement funds to GWMA. 

8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this 
Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies 
expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are 
cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the 
same default, or any other default by the other parties. 

8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take 
legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for 
any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to obtain declaratory or 
injunctive relief, or to obtain any other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement. 

8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend 
or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any other relief that may be granted, 
whether legal or equitable, shall be entitled to actual attorneys’ fees.  Attorneys’ fees shall 
include attorneys’ fees on any appeal, and in addition a party entitled to attorneys’ fees shall be 
entitled to all other costs for investigating such action, taking depositions and discovery and all 
other costs incurred in such litigation. 

8.7 Assignment.  Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without GWMA’s prior written consent. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any 
member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible 
for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to be done by 
Subrecipient, its officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors under this 
Agreement.  Subrecipient shall fully indemnify, defend and hold GWMA harmless from and 
against any liability and expenses, including defense costs, any costs or liability on account of 
bodily injury, death or personal injury of any person or for damage to or loss of risk of property, 
any environmental obligation, any legal fees, and any claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever arising out of this Agreement, including: (i) misuse of the Funds by Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors; (ii) default or breach of 
Subrecipient’s obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any act or omission of Subrecipient or 
its officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance and 
implementation of the Sub-Project under this Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 9.1 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Page 7 of 12 
 



10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall 
be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) 
the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier service during Subrecipient’s and 
GWMA’s regular business hours or by facsimile before or during regular business hours; or (ii) 
on the third business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the 
addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, 
designate in writing pursuant to the provisions of this Section 10.1.  All notices shall be delivered 
the parties at the following addresses: 

To GWMA:  Attn: Grace J. Kast, Executive Officer 
   Gateway Regional Water Management Authority 
   16401 Paramount Boulevard 
   Paramount, California 90723 

     Facsimile: 562-634-8216 

To Subrecipient: Attn: Sandi Linares-Plimpton, Conservation Manager 
   Central Basin Municipal Water District  

     6252 Telegraph Road 
     Commerce, California 90040-2512 
     Facsimile: 323-201-5550 

 
10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of 

reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the 
rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement. 

10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” 
“will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) 
“includes” or “including” are not limiting. 

10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason 
of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construction which might otherwise 
apply. 

10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements 
between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes 
and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and understandings, if 
any, between the parties, and none shall be used to interpret this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended at any time by the mutual consent of the parties by an instrument in writing. 

10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (iii) by so executing 
this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) 
entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other agreement to which said 
party is bound. 

Page 8 of 12 
 



10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this 
Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express 
provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall prevail, except that all state grant fund requirements contained in Exhibit A 
shall prevail over the provisions of this Agreement. 

10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and continue 
in full force and effect. 

Page 9 of 12 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Central Basin Subrecipient Agreement 

The parties are signing this Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause. 

GWMA 

Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated 
Regional Water Management Joint Powers 
Authority, 
a California Joint Powers Authority 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Subrecipient 

Central Basin Municipal Water District 
a __________________ 

By: 
Name: Kevin P. Hunt, P.E. 
Title: General Manager 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name: Alfred Smith 
Title: Nossaman, LLP, District Counsel 

-10- 
12664-0003\1976974v2.doc 



DRAFT 07/29/2016 Central Basin Subrecipient Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 
GRANT AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN DWR AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

-11- 
12664-0003\1976974v2.doc 



EXHIBIT B 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN GWMA AND LACFCD 
(See Attached) 

Page 12 of 12 



8/6/2016 Local legislators reach compromise on Central Basin reform bills

http://www.presstelegram.com/governmentandpolitics/20160805/locallegislatorsreachcompromiseoncentralbasinreformbills?source=most_view… 1/2

Long Beach Press Telegram (http://www.presstelegram.com)

Local legislators reach compromise on Central Basin reform bills

By Mike Sprague, Whittier Daily News

Friday, August 5, 2016

State Sen. Ricardo Lara and Assemblywoman Cristina Garcia announced Friday a compromise on their
proposed legislation to reform the Central Basin Municipal Water District.

The compromise will place three nonelected officials from water utilities on the board and eventually reduce
the number of elected directors from five to four, said Garcia, DDowney. The reduction in board members
won’t happen until 2022.

“I think the compromise is thoughtful and fair and reaches both of our goals, which is to make sure we have a
board that is more transparent and accountable,” Garcia said.

Lara, DLong Beach, agreed.

“Central Basin ratepayers deserve accountability and transparency from their leaders,” he wrote in an email.
“Today, I am proud to join Assemblymember Garcia in advancing our package to enact much needed reforms
designed to restore trust among the community and move the district forward.”

Garcia and Lara introduced AB 1794 and SB 953 in response to the state audit released in December 2015 that
included 32 recommendations criticizing the board for causing the district to lose its liability insurance coverage;
violating state law by improperly approving the establishment of a legal trust fund without adequate public
disclosure; engaging in questionable contract practices by avoiding competitive bidding; and inappropriately
using amendments to extend and expand contracts.

District officials said they have completed nearly all of the recommendations and will be finished by the end of
the year.

Garcia and Lara had differed on the makeup of the board. Lara wanted to add two appointed directors and leave
the number of elected members at five. Garcia wanted a board made up of four elected officials and three
appointed, with the transition to take place after the November 2018 election.

Mark Grajeda, president of the Central Basin Municipal Water Association, said he’s happy an agreement was
reached.

“The thing I’m most excited about is that they’re working together,” Grajeda said.

Central Basin General Manager Kevin Hunt said he didn’t like the reduction of the number of elected members
on the board but otherwise he’s OK with the proposal.

”I don’t agree with cutting the voting power of citizens,” he said.

Each of the legislators will keep their bills but amend them. Garcia’s bill will include the governance issues on
the makeup of the board.

The Legislature has until Aug. 31 to approve both bills and send them to the governor.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8

http://www.presstelegram.com/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_953&sess=CUR&house=B&author=lara_%3Clara%3E
https://www.auditor.ca.gov/reports/2015-102/index.html


8/6/2016 Local legislators reach compromise on Central Basin reform bills

http://www.presstelegram.com/governmentandpolitics/20160805/locallegislatorsreachcompromiseoncentralbasinreformbills?source=most_view… 2/2

URL: http://www.presstelegram.com/governmentandpolitics/20160805/locallegislatorsreachcompromiseoncentralbasinreformbills

© 2016 Long Beach Press Telegram (http://www.presstelegram.com)

http://www.presstelegram.com/

	AGENDA - FINAL
	Section 5a - Minutes of July 14 - FINAL
	Thursday, JULY 14, 2016
	None.
	ITEM 5 – CONSENT CALENDAR
	Director Mostahkami motioned to approve the consent calendar. Director Garner seconded the motion which was approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, KOURI, CASH, NEGRETE
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: DOR, NILA
	ITEM 6 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING SB953 (LARA)
	Ms. Kast welcomed Julia Juarez, District Officer from Senator Lara’s office.
	Ms. Juarez updated the Board on the current status of SB953.  She stated that the Bill was currently with the Assembly Appropriations Committee.  She stated that this Bill required that the board of directors of the Central Basin MWD consist of 7 mem...
	Director William DeWitt entered the meeting at 12:06 pm.
	ITEM 7 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES:  GWMA’S CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS
	AYES:  MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, KOURI, CASH, NEGRETE
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: NONE
	ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING HOSTING A STORMWATER NPDES WORKSHOP
	Ms. Kast introduced Iso Nakasato from Assemblywoman Garcia’s office.  Ms. Kast reported that GWMA was approached by Ms. Nakasato to host the Stormwater NPDES Workshop.  Ms. Kast asked for volunteers to help with the Workshop to be held possibly in Sep...
	Director’s Gina Nila, Lisa Rapp and Mr. Charlie Honeycutt volunteered to help.
	ITEM 9 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING THE INCLUSION OF SWMPs INTO THE GATEWAY IRWM PLAN
	Ms. Kast reported that in order to complete the Stormwater Grant Prop 1 eligibility process, each watershed group must incorporate their respective Storm Water Resource Plans into the Gateway IRWM Plan by reference.  She stated that GWMA had received...
	Director Nila motioned to approve resolutions as presented to incorporate each of the 4 SWRPs into the Gateway IRWM Plan by reference.  The motion was seconded by Director Negrete and approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: MONROE, VU, GORECKI, LEGASPI, O’GRADY, HERNANDEZ-TORRES, MOSTAHKAMI, MUNOZ, RAPP, AREVALO, GARNER, KOURI, CASH, DOR, DE WITT
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: NONE
	Director Legaspi left the meeting at 1:00 pm.
	ITEM 10 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT GROUPS
	Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group
	Director Nila reported on the current status of the Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group and stated that the feasibility study and soil testing was being performed at six sites.
	Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group
	None.
	Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group
	Director Arevalo reported on the current status of the Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group.
	Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group
	None.
	Director Munoz left the meeting at 1:11 pm.
	Director’s Kouri and Arevalo left the meeting at 1:13 pm.
	ITEM 11 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
	Ms. Kast reported that staff was currently soliciting proposals for a grant/project manager for the Advanced Meter Replacement regional project.
	ITEM 12 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT
	Director DeWitt gave an update on water testing in the Los Angeles River.
	The meeting was adjourned at 1:17.


	Section 5b - Board Letter Warrant List - FINAL
	Section 5B- August Warrant List - FINAL
	Section 6 - Board Letter GWMA Audit for FY 2014-15 - FINAL
	Section 6 - LA Gateway FS 2015 - FINAL
	Section 7 - Board Letter Subreceipient Agreements  - FINAL
	Section 7a - MOU Prop 84
	Section 7b - Subrecipient Agreement - Advanced Meter Replacement
	1. subrecipient obligations
	1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  Subrecipient shall replace or cause to be replaced water meters at customer service connections with Advanced Meter Reading (“AMR”) units that have advanced reading technology capabilities (the “Sub-Project”) in acc...
	1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be ___________________________________ Dollars ($______).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of _________________________ Dollars ($_________) of its own funds, which c...
	1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Fu...
	1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby ...
	1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreeme...
	1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR.
	1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency havin...
	1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Gr...
	1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed $_______________, which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, for grant administrative costs, management,...
	1.10 GWMA Administrative Fee.  Within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Agreement, but in no event later than September 1, 2016, Subrecipient shall submit a GWMA Administrative Fee in the amount of _____________________________________ dollars...
	1.11 Direct Project Administrative Fee.  Within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Agreement, but in no event later than September 1, 2016, Subrecipient shall submit a Direct Project Administrative Fee, which covers the costs of hiring the Cons...

	2. GWMA Obligations
	2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU.
	2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds fro...
	2.3 Hiring of Project Manager Consultant.  On behalf of Subrecipient, GWMA shall hire a project manager (“Consultant”) for managing the project deliverable requirements set forth in the Grant Agreement and the MOU, relating to reporting and compliance...

	3. disbursement of funds
	3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed (grant amount less 2.5% County fee)  Dollars ($_________), which shall constitute GWMA’s full ob...
	3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds alloc...
	3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Ag...

	4. performance schedule
	4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time p...
	4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been co...
	4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any acc...

	5. coordination of work
	5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient shall be the City Manager of the City of _________ or such person as may be designated by the City Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer any decisions that must be made...
	5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept info...
	5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, oblig...

	6. mandatory liability coverage
	6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence...
	6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Subrecipient shall file with GWMA upon the execution of this Agreement, a memorandum of coverage issued by the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority that shall provide that no cancellation, major change in coverage, ...
	6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide (i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (i...
	6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damag...

	7. RECORDS AND reports
	7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later.
	7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Con...

	8. enforcement of contract
	8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dis...
	8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for ...
	8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement.
	8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights...
	8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to ob...
	8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any othe...
	8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in part, without GWMA’s prior written consent.

	9. indemnification
	9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to...

	10. miscellaneous provisions
	10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier se...
	10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement.
	10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” “will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) “includes” or “including” are not limiting.
	10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construc...
	10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and ...
	10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (...
	10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the p...
	10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affect...


	Section 7c - Subrecipient Agreement - Paramount Blvd Turf Replacement
	1. subrecipient obligations
	1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  As part of the Sub-Project, Subrecipient shall replace turf located on approximately 100,000 square feet of median islands along Paramount Boulevard from Del Amo Boulevard to Carson Street.  The Sub-Project includes...
	1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be Two Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Eighteen Dollars ($2,027,418.00).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of One Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred...
	1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Fu...
	1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby ...
	1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreeme...
	1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR.
	1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency havin...
	1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Gr...
	1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s requested grant amount, for grant administr...

	2. GWMA Obligations
	2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU.
	2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds fro...

	3. disbursement of funds
	3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($975,000.00), which shall constitute GWMA’s full obl...
	3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds alloc...
	3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Ag...

	4. performance schedule
	4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time p...
	4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been co...
	4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any acc...

	5. coordination of work
	5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient shall be the City Manager of the City of Lakewood or such person as may be designated by the City Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer any decisions that must be made ...
	5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept info...
	5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, oblig...

	6. mandatory liability coverage
	6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence...
	6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Subrecipient shall file with GWMA upon the execution of this Agreement, a memorandum of coverage issued by the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority that shall provide that no cancellation, major change in coverage, ...
	6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide (i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (i...
	6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damag...

	7. RECORDS AND reports
	7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later.
	7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Con...

	8. enforcement of contract
	8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dis...
	8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for ...
	8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement.
	8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights...
	8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to ob...
	8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any othe...
	8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in part, without GWMA’s prior written consent.

	9. indemnification
	9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to...

	10. miscellaneous provisions
	10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier se...
	10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement.
	10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” “will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) “includes” or “including” are not limiting.
	10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construc...
	10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and ...
	10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (...
	10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the p...
	10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affect...


	Section 7d - Subrecipient Agreement - Recycled Water System Expansion
	1. subrecipient obligations
	1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  The Sub-Project is comprised of preparing planning, design, and environmental documents for recycled water pipelines that will extend the Central Basin Municipal Water District recycled water system.  The Sub-Projec...
	1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be One Million Forty-Six Thousand One Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Zero Cents ($1,046,143.00).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand...
	1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Fu...
	1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby ...
	1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  If the Sub-Project requires a labor compliance program, then, in addition to and as part of all its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that Subrecipient is solely ...
	1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR.
	1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency havin...
	1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Gr...
	1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Three Thousand Twenty Dollars and Twenty-Seven Cents ($23,020.27), which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s requested g...

	2. GWMA Obligations
	2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU.
	2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds fro...
	2.3 Hiring of Project Manager Consultant.  On behalf of Subrecipient, GWMA shall hire a project manager (“Consultant”) for managing the project deliverable requirements set forth in the Grant Agreement and the MOU, relating to reporting and compliance...

	3. disbursement of funds
	3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Eight Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars and Seventy-Three Cents ($897,7...
	3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds alloc...
	3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Ag...

	4. performance schedule
	4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time p...
	4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been co...
	4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any acc...

	5. coordination of work
	5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient shall be the Chief Engineer of the Central Basin Municipal Water District or such person as may be designated by the General Manager of the Central Basin Municipal Wate...
	5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be the Executive Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept info...
	5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, oblig...

	6. mandatory liability coverage
	6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence...
	6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall file with GWMA commercial insurance coverage issued by Allied World Assurance Company that shall provide notice of cancellation shall be provided to GWMA in accordan...
	6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide (i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (i...
	6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damag...

	7. RECORDS AND reports
	7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later.
	7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Con...

	8. enforcement of contract
	8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dis...
	8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for ...
	8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement.
	8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights...
	8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to ob...
	8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any othe...
	8.7 Assignment.   Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in part, without GWMA’s prior written consent.

	9. indemnification
	9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to...

	10. miscellaneous provisions
	10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier se...
	10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement.
	10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” “will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) “includes” or “including” are not limiting.
	10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construc...
	10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and ...
	10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (...
	10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the p...
	10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affect...


	Section 7e - Subrecipient Agreement - Southeast Water Efficiency
	1. subrecipient obligations
	1.1 Implementation of Sub-Project.  As part of the sub-Project, Subrecipient shall: (1) audit 57 public facilities throughout the Central Basin to determine sources of excessive water use, and (2) retrofit the sites (as necessary) based on audit resul...
	1.2 Commitment to Cost-Share.  The total cost of the Sub-Project is estimated to be One Million One Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars and Zero Cents ($1,159,433.00).  Subrecipient shall invest a minimum of Four Hundred Thir...
	1.3 Use of DWR Funds.  Subrecipient shall use the DWR grant funds (“Funds”) solely for the implementation of the Sub-Project pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.  The Fu...
	1.4 Compliance with the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient shall act on GWMA’s behalf in the fulfillment of GWMA’s responsibilities under the MOU and the Grant Agreement where specified in the MOU and the Grant Agreement.  Subrecipient hereby ...
	1.5 Labor Compliance Program.  In addition to and as part of all its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4 of this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that Subrecipient is solely responsible for complying with Section 17 of the Grant Agreeme...
	1.6 Audited Financial Statements.  Subrecipient shall demonstrate the availability of sufficient funds to complete the Sub-Project by submitting the most recent three (3) years of audited financial statements to GWMA for submission to LACFCD and DWR.
	1.7 Compliance with Law.  Subrecipient shall perform the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement in accordance with all ordinances, resolutions, statutes, rules and regulations of any federal, state or local government agency havin...
	1.8 Breach and Default.  In the event that DWR or LACFCD determines Subrecipient has defaulted under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, or has caused GWMA to default under the MOU or the Grant Agreement, as such default is defined in Section 13 of the Gr...
	1.9 LACFCD Administrative Fee.  Subrecipient agrees to allow LACFCD to be reimbursed by DWR in an amount not to exceed Eighteen Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Seven Dollars and Fifty-Five Cents ($18,647.55), which represents 2.5 percent of Subrecipient’s ...

	2. GWMA Obligations
	2.1 Grant Administration.  GWMA shall administer the MOU and the Funds and respond to DWR’s and LACFCD’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with grant administration in accordance with the terms of the Grant Agreement and the MOU.
	2.2 Grant Reimbursements.  GWMA shall process all Sub-Project grant reimbursement requests and related invoices submitted by the Subrecipient to LACFCD, which will then process all grant reimbursement requests with DWR.  Only upon receipt of funds fro...

	3. disbursement of funds
	3.1 Maximum Amount of Funds.  Upon compliance with the requirements set forth in this Agreement, GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient an amount not to exceed Seven Hundred Twenty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty-Five Cents ($727,25...
	3.2 Cost Overruns.  At no time shall GWMA or a non-participating GWMA member be liable for any cost associated with the Project, including the Sub-Project.  In the event that the Funds are not forthcoming from DWR for any reason, or if the Funds alloc...
	3.3 Method of Payment.  GWMA shall make reimbursements to Subrecipient upon Subrecipient’s submittal of, and GWMA’s approval of: (i) a detailed invoice for Sub-Project costs incurred containing the information required in Section 11.c) of the Grant Ag...

	4. performance schedule
	4.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
	4.2 Schedule of Performance.  Subrecipient shall commence, prosecute and complete the Sub-Project as detailed under Section 1.1 of this Agreement within the time periods established in Exhibit C of the Grant Agreement, unless extensions of such time p...
	4.3 Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be terminated when all of the following have occurred, unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Agreement: (i) the entirety of the Sub-Project has been co...
	4.4 Reversion of Assets.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall transfer to GWMA: (i) any and all Funds on hand that Subrecipient is not already obligated to pay to others for the Sub-Project; and (ii) any acc...

	5. coordination of work
	5.1 Subrecipient Representative.  The Subrecipient Representative for Subrecipient shall be the Conservation Manager of the Central Basin Municipal Water District or such person as may be designated by the General Manager in writing.  GWMA shall refer...
	5.2 GWMA Representative.  The GWMA Representative shall be Executive Director, or such person as may be designated by the Executive Director in writing.  It shall be Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that the GWMA Representative is kept informed...
	5.3 Independent Contractor.  Subrecipient is, and shall at all times remain as to GWMA and to all GWMA members not named as subrecipients under this Agreement, a wholly independent contractor.  Subrecipient shall have no power to incur any debt, oblig...

	6. mandatory liability coverage
	6.1 General Liability Coverage.  Subrecipient shall obtain, at its sole cost and keep in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence...
	6.2 Memorandum of Coverage.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, Subrecipient shall file with GWMA commercial insurance coverage issued by Allied World Assurance Company that shall provide notice of cancellation shall be provided to GWMA in accordan...
	6.3 Additional Insurance Requirements.  The general liability coverage shall provide (i) that the coverage shall extend to the City, GWMA, and each of its officers, agency, employees and volunteers, including as respects to Completed Operations and (i...
	6.4 Coverage Requirements.  Subrecipient shall require each consultant or contractor retained by Subrecipient to implement the Sub-Project to obtain liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damag...

	7. RECORDS AND reports
	7.1 Records.  Subrecipient shall be preserve all records related to the Sub-Project for at least three (3) years after completion of the Sub-Project or final billing, whichever comes later.
	7.2 Reports.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit detailed invoices regarding the Sub-Project to GWMA on a quarterly basis.  Subrecipient shall prepare and submit reports to GWMA as required under Section 18 of the Grant Agreement.  GWMA and its Con...

	8. enforcement of contract
	8.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted both as to validity and to performance of the parties in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States, as applicable.  Legal actions concerning any dis...
	8.2 Termination.  GWMA may terminate this Agreement if GWMA receives notice from DWR or LACFCD that the Grant Agreement or the MOU has been terminated by giving thirty (30) calendar days’ notice to Subrecipient.  GWMA shall reimburse Subrecipient for ...
	8.3 Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any other condition of performance under this Agreement.
	8.4 Rights and Remedies are Cumulative.  Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties are cumulative and the exercise by any party of one or more of such rights...
	8.5 Legal Action.  In addition to any other rights or remedies, any party may take legal action, in law or in equity, to cure, correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to complete specific performance of this Agreement, to ob...
	8.6 Attorneys’ Fees.   If any party to this Agreement is required to initiate or defend or is made a party to any action or proceeding in any way connected with this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding, in addition to any othe...
	8.7 Assignment.  Subrecipient shall not assign this Agreement, either in whole or in part, without GWMA’s prior written consent.

	9. indemnification
	9.1 Indemnification.  Neither GWMA nor any officer or employee thereof, nor any member of GWMA that is not named as a subrecipient in this Agreement, shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or committed to...

	10. miscellaneous provisions
	10.1 Notices.  Any notices, bills, invoices or reports required by this Agreement shall be given by first class U.S. mail or by personal service.  Notices shall be deemed received on (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand or overnight courier se...
	10.2 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations of the parties to this Agreement.
	10.3 Word Usage.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,” “will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and (c) “includes” or “including” are not limiting.
	10.4 Interpretation.  The terms of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the meaning of the language used and shall not be construed for or against either party by reason of the authorship of this Agreement or any other rule of construc...
	10.5 Integration; Amendment.  It is understood that there are no oral agreements between the parties of this Agreement affecting this Agreement and this Agreement supersedes and cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements, and ...
	10.6 Corporate Authority.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement, on behalf of said party; (...
	10.7 Exhibits; Precedence.  Exhibit A and Exhibit B are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this Agreement and the provisions of Exhibit A and Exhibit B, the p...
	10.8 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affect...


	Section 8 - Local legislators reach compromise on Central Basin reform bills



